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Independent auditors’ report on consolidated financial
statements

To

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Banco Votorantim S A

S#o Paulo - SP

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Banco Votorantim S A (“Bank”),
which comprise the consohdated balance sheet as of December 31, 2011 and the related
consohdated statements of tncome, comprehensive mcome, changes in stockholders’ equity and
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting practices and other
explanatory notes to the financial statements

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

Management 1s responsible for the preparation and farr presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the internal controls it
deemed necessary to enable the preparation of these financial statements free from misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility 1s to express an opimion on these consolhdated financial statements based on
our audit carried out in accordance with the Brazihan and International Standards on Auditing
Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from matenal
misstatement

An audit mvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures 1n the financial statements The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error In making those risk assessment, the auditors consider
internal control relevant to the Bank’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements 1n order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 1n the circumstances, but not
for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control An
audit also mcludes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting practices used and the
reasonableness of accounting esiimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements

KPMG Auditores Independ uma dade simples brasil e KPMG Auditores indepandentes a Brazian entty and a member
firma-membro da rede KPMG de firmas-membro independentes e firmn of the KPMG network of mdep firms affiated
afihadas & KPMG Intemat | Cooperative (KPMG | ) with KPMG International Cooperatne | KPMG int 1 i) &

uma entidade suiga Swiss enlty




heonic

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 15 sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion

Opinion

In our opinton, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Banco Votorantim S A as of December 31, 2011, and uts
consohdated financial performance and 1ts consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS}) 1ssued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB)

Other subjects
Statements of value added

In addition, we have examined the consolidated statements of value added as of 31 December
2011, whose presentation 1s being made spontancously by Banco Votorantim S A and as
supplementary information to the IFRS, which do not require the presentation of the statements
of value added These statements were subject to the same audit procedures as mentioned above
and, in our opinion, are presented fairly, in all matenal respects, in relatton to the financial
statements taken as a whole

Sdo Paulo, March 29, 2012

KPMG Auditores Independentes

CRC 25P014428/0-6

Original report in Portuguese signed by

Alberto Spilborghs Neto Luciana Liberal Sdma
Accountant CRC 1SP167455/0-0 Accountant CRC 15P198502/0-8
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Banco Votorantim S A

Consolidated statements of income

Fiscal years ended on December 31,2011 and 2010

(in thousands of Reais)

Interest revenue
Interest expense

Fmancial Margin

Revenues from services and commission fees
Expenses with services and commission fees

Net services and commission fee results

Result of financial assets/liabilittes at fair value through profit and loss
Result of financial assets available for sale

Result from denvauve financial instruments

Other operating revenues

Operating results

Result of losses due to impairment

Personnel expenses

Other admimistrative expenses

Depreciation and amortization expenses

Tax expenses

Result from sale of non-current assets held for sale
Other operating expenses

Income before taxes and contmbutwons and profit shanng

Current incorme taxes and contnbution expenses
Deferred income 1axes and coninbution expenses

Profit sharing

Net utcome for the fiscal year attributable to the controlling shareholders

Participation of non-controlhng shareholders

Net income for the fiscal year

I he explanatory notes are consutuent pants of the financial statements

Note

29
30

31
32

33

34

35

37
38
39
40
41

2011 2010
16 568 001 11120383
(12649 084) (7924 062)
3918 917 3196 321
1737 664 3435070
(2539 557y (3338 120)
(801 893) 96 950
3 446 854 2429 554
132 644 58 342
(1328467) (1 302828)
100 442 247 569
5468 497 4 725 908
(4023 487) (1428 797)
(858 650) (774 724)
(557 548) {546 369)
(37 202) (28 432)
(580 268) (519 305)
(105 198) (119 370)
(557 575) (206 946)
{1251 431) 1101 965
(119 934) (265 625)
1039 827 25942
(186 916) (215 430)
{518 454} 646 852
- "
(518 454) 646 863




Banco Votorantim S.A.

Consolidated statements of comprehensive income

Fiscal years ended on December 31, 2011 and 2010

(In thousands of Reais)

Net income for the fiscal year

Net vanance of the fair value of financial assets available for sale

Far value adjustment against equity
Reclassification of realized income to profit and loss

Income from denvative financial instruments (hedging)
Income tax and social coninbution on comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

The explanatory notes are constituent parts of the financial statements

2011 2010
(518 454) 646 863
129 270 24 900
261914 83242
(132 644) (58 342)
(5 005) .
(52 486) 3706
(446 675) 675 469
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Banco Votorantim S.A

Consolidated statements of cash flows

Fiscal years ended on December 31, 2011 and 2010

(In thousands of Reais)

Cash flows from operating actiaties
Met income for the fiscal year

Adjustments to net income

Depreciatton/amortization

Provision for losses due to impairment
Provisions and legal obhgations
Revenues associated with funding

Net (increase) decrease of operating assets

Financial assets with agreement for resale
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financaal assets available for sale
Denvauve financial instruments

Loans and receivables

Dividend receivables

Current 1ax assets

Deferred 1ax assets

Non-current assets held for sale

Other assets

Equity assessment adjustments

Net increase (decrease) of oepranng habihines

Financial habiltues at fair value through profit or loss
Financial hatilibes at amortized cost

Financial habilthies associated with transferred assets
Financial institution deposits

Client deposits

Loans and onlendings

Secunties 1ssued

Denvative financial instruments

Current 1ax habilities

Deferred 1ax habilities

Orher lizbilines

Cash generated / (used) by operating activities
Cash flows deriving from financimg activities

Capital ncrease

Dividends pard

Increase or decrease of participation of non-controlling sharcholders

Subordinated habihties

Cash generated / (used) by the financing activities
Cash flow derwving from the investment activihes

Tangbie assets

Intangible assets

Cash generated / (used) by the investment activihes

Net vanance of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equvalents a1 the beginning of the fiscal year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the fiscal year

Increase / (reduction) of cash and cash equivalents

The explanatory notes are constituent parts of the financial statements

2011 2010
(518 454) 646 863
4401124 1862 140
37202 28432
3922807 1347 474
347468 386 288
93647 99 946

{13 691 582)

(39 354 157)

2638148 289 727
3099556 (2 669 281)
(7249 211) (3972 750)
112 481 (267 754)
(11 275 607) (31018312)
(26 148) .
(330 093) (308 893)
(859 366) (393 549)
(14 496) (23 014)
141 375 {1 008 664)
71779 18333
13 747 555 26 603 768
(2500271) 2242749
1368 327 6 394 509
8148 229 8181 381
2129937 (1014 776}
(103 254) 135 811
223 882 3951725
6392 135 41016779
(@12617) 623 153
(47 183) (135 297
(127 974) 41101t
(1 324 256) 1796 723
3938 643 (10 241 386)
. 450000
(270 629) (294 026)
51} 1
493 (48 2 537 441
222 368 2693 426
(41758) (54 650)
(24 330) (19026}
{66088) (73 676)
4094923 {7 621 636}
1499 981 9121617
5 594 904 1499 981
4094923 (7 621 636)




Banco Votorantim S A.

Consolidated statements of value added

Fiscal years ended on December 31, 2011 and 2010

(In thousands of Reals)

Revenues

Interest revenue

Interest expense

Results from services and commssion fees
Results from losses due impammnent

Other operating revenues / {(expenses)

Items acquired from thard parties

Matenals energy and others
Therd party services

Others

Communications

Maimtenance and preservation of assets
Data processing

Promotions and public relanons
Pubhications

Advertising and publiciry

Finangial system services

Specialized techmical services
Transportation

Others

Gross value added
Amortizauon/depreciation expenses
Net value added produced by the entity
Value added to be distmbuted
Valoe added distributed
Personnel
Salaries and professional fees
Profit shanng
Benefits and tramning
FGTS (Unemployment Compensaton Fund}
Taxes, tanffs and contributions
In Brazil
INSS (National Social Security Insutute) on salanes
Tax expenses (except income tax and social contnibution)
Income 1ax / social contmbution
Remuneration of Third Party Capital
Remt
Remuneration of own capital
Dividends / anterest on equity

(Loss) / Retasned eamings
Mimonty paricipaiion in retained eamings

The explanatory notes are constitunet parts of the financial statements

10

2011 2010
782 237 2970 795
16 568 D01 11120 383
(12 649 084) (7924 062)
(801 893) 96 950
(4 023 487) (1428 797)
1688 700 1106321
(423 944) (431 407)
(9 836) (11 602)
(17274) (86 002)
(396 834) {333 803)
(101 454) (102 374)
(17 183) (13967)
(152 250) (118 137)
(16 222) (22 779)
(1 000) (1797
(10 211) (33841}
(692) (1038)
on {120)
(24 151) (21 507)
{73 644) (18 244)
358 293 2539 388
(37202) (28 432)
321091 2510 956
321 091 2 510 956
321 091 2510956
911 308 868 659
529854 489 243
186 916 215430
144 375 124 363
50 163 39622
(205 367) 880 483
(205 367) 880 483
134 258 121 495
580268 519 305
(919 893) 239683
133 604 114 962
133 604 114 962
(518 454) 646 852
128 389 241121
(646 843) 405 731




Banco Votorantim S.A.

Explanatory notes to the consolidated financial statements

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010

(1 thousands of Brazilian Reais)

Operating context

Banco Votorantim 1s a non-publhic stock company that, operating n the form of a muluple bank,
carries out banking activities n the authormzed categories, by means of 1ts commercial,
investments, financing and foreign exchange transaction portfolios Headquartered in Brazl,
Banco Votorantim 1s lecated at Avemida das Nagdes Unidas No 14171 - Sdo Paulo - State of Séo
Paulo

Banco Votorantim and 1ts controlled subsidiaries BV Financeira S A - Crédito, Financiamento e
Investimento, Votorantim Asset Management Distribuidora de Titulos e Valores Mobiliarios
Ltda, Votorantim Corretora de Titulos e Valores Mobilidrios Ltda and BV Leasing -
Arrendamento Mercantil S A (the Conglomerate) also operate 1n a number of other categories,
featuring among them activities of consumer credit, financial leasing and third party assets
management

The transactions are conducted in an integrated form in the financial market, including with
regard to risk management, where certain transactions have the co-participation or intermediation
of associated mstitutions The benefits of the services provided among these institutions and the
costs of the operating and administrative structure are absorbed according to the practicability
and reasonability of them being attributed jointly or individually

Basis for the preparation of the financial statements

a. Representation of conformity
The consohidated financial statements have been prepared according to the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB)

b. Basis for recognition and measurement
The regular acquisitions and sales of financial instruments, including derivative financial

instruments, are recognized on the date of trading - the date when the Conglomerate commuits
to acquiring or selling the asset

11




Banco Votorantim S.A.

Explanatory notes to the consolidated financial statements

(in thousands of Brazilian Reais)

The financial instruments are written off when the rights of recetving cash flows from the
investments have matured or have been transferred, in the latter case, provided that the
Conglomerate has transferred sigmficantly all the nsks and all the benefits of ownership of
the financial instrument The financial assets available for sale and the financial assets
measured by the fair value through profit or loss are subsequently booked at fair value The

loans and receivables are booked by the amortized cost, using the effective interest method

Gains or losses deriving from variances in the fair value of financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss are shown in the statement of income 1n “Result of financial

assets at fair value through profit or loss” in the fiscal year in which they occur

When the mstruments classified as available for sale are sold or incur losses due to
impairment, the accumulated adjustments of the fair value, recogmzed m the stockholders’®
equity, are included 1n the statement of income as “Result of financial assets available for

sale”

The fair values of financial assets with public quotes are based on the current purchase and
sale prices If the market for a financial asset (and for instruments not registered 1n a Security
Exchange) 1s not active, the Conglomerate establishes the far value using evaluation
techniques These techniques include recent transactions contracted with third parties,
reference to other instruments that are substantially similar, analysis of discounted cash flows
and the pricing models of options that make the most use possible of information generated

by the market and that rely on the least possible information generated by the Management

The Conglomerate regularly assesses 1f there 1s objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets show(s) signs of impairment of 1ts recoverable value For the case of
financial assets classified as available for sale, a sigmificant or prolonged drop of the fair
value of the instrument, to below its cost value, 15 considered to be a sign that the instruments
arc impaired If any one of these evidences exists for the financial assets available for sale,
the cumulative loss - measured as being the difference between cost of acquisition and
current fair value - 1s removed from the stockholders’ equity and recogmzed n the statement

of income

12




Banco Votorantim S.A.

Explanatory notes to the consolidated financial statements

(in thousands of Brazilian Rears)

¢. Functional currency and currency of presentation

These financial statements are presented in Rears, which are the functional currency of the
Company

d. Accounting estimates and judgment

The preparation of financial statements requires Management to use judgment to determine
and record accounting estimates The settlement of transactions involving such estimates can
result 1n amounts that are different from those estimated, due to mmaccuracies that are inherent
to the process of determination Significant items that are subject to such estimates and
assumptions include the evaluation of financial assets and liabilities and derivative financial
instruments at their fair value, analysis of credit risk for the determination of the provisions
for losses due to ympairment, as well as analysis of the contingent habihties Management

revises the estimates and assumptions regularly

The principal amounts recognized in the financial statements by means of estimates are

included 1n the following explanatory notes

No 6 - Financial assets

No 7 - Derivative financial instruments

No 8 - Loans and receivables

No 15 - Financial habilities at fair value through profit or loss
No 23 - Provisions

e. Basis for consolidation

The companies that are considered to be subsidiaries are those over which the Company
exercises control, represented by the power of managing their financial and operating policies
to obtain benefiis from their activities The subsidaries are consolidated by the integrated
method, from the moment when the Company assumes control over their activities up to the

moment when such control ceases

13




Banco Votorantim S.A.

Explanatory notes to the consolidated financial statements

(in thousands of Brazihan Rears)

The consolidated financial statements comprise the transactions of Banco Votorantim

{parent) and of the following compames

Controlled subsidiaries in Brazil (direct participation)
Votorantim CTVM Ltda
Votorantim Asset Management DTVM Ltda
BV Financeira S A Crédito, Financiamento e Investimento
BV Leasing Arrendamento Mercantil S A
BVIP - BV Investimentos ¢ Participagdes S A
BVIA - BV Inv Alternativos e Gestdo de Recursos S A

Controlled subsidiaries abroad (direct participation)
Votorantim Bank Limited
Banco Votorantim Securnities Inc
Votorantim Secunties (UK) Limited — (1}

Percentage
2011 2010
99 98 99 68
99 9% 99 99
100 00 100 00
99 99 99 99
100 00 100 00
100 00 100 00
100 00 100 00
100 00 100 00
100 00 -

The consolidated financial statements also show investment funds in which Banco
Votorantim and 1its controlled subsidiaries hold the majonty of the risks and benefits of the

activities of such funds, which are listed below

BV Fmnancewra FIDC |

BV Financewra FIDC 11

BV Financeira FIDC 111

BV Financeira FIDC IV

Fundo Invest Nidbio | Renda fixa - (11 )
BV Financeira FIDC V - Nio padromzado
Votorantim G&K FIP

BVIA Fundo Invest Participages

Fundoe de Invest Sedna Ref DI

14

Percentage of

participation in the

total units

2011

100 00
2929
100 00
100 00
100 00

2010

4722
25 66
2267
2077

36 94
100 00
100 00
100 00




Banco Votorantim S.A.

Explanatory notes to the consolidated financial statements

(in thousands of Brazilian Reais)

f

1 Votorantim Securities (UK) was mcorporated on July 29, 2011 with imitial capital of £ 4
rmillion

1 Banco Votorantim and 1ts subsidiary BV Financeira indirectly hold shares through Fundo
Invest Niébio [ Renda fixa [fixed income fund] which as of July 25, 2011, absorbed
100% of the subordinated shares of recervables funds shown in the table below

Percentage of

mdirect
participation
total units
BV Financeira FIDC 1 5922
BV Financeira FIDC 11 24 51
BV Financeira FIDC 111 24 31
BV Financeira FIDC 1V 2248
BV Fnanceira FIDC VI 2580

Investments in affiliates

An affihate 1s an entty over which the Bank has significant influence and which does not
appear as a controlled subsidiary nor as participation in an enterprise under common control
(“jount venture™} Sigmificant influence 1s the power of participating in the decisions
concerming the financial and operating policies of the nvested entity, without controlling
such policies on either an individual or jomt basis On December 31, 2011 and 2010, the
Conglomerate had no investments n affiliates

Transactions elimination in consolidation

Intragroup balances and transactions, and any revenues or expenses deriving from intragroup
transactions, are eliminated when preparing the consolidated financial statements Unrealized
earnings denving from transactions with imvested companies, recorded by the equity
accounting system, are eliminated against the investment in proportion to the participation of
the Conglomerate in the invested company Unrealized losses are ehminated in the same way
as unrealized earmings, but only to the extent that there 1s no evidence of loss due to
impairment

15




Banco Votorantim S.A.

Explanatory notes to the consolidated financial statements

(in thousands of Brazilian Rears)

h. Equity position of the controlled subsidiaries in Brazil

On December 31, 2011

Votorantim Votoranhm BY BV
CivM DTVM Financeira Leasing BVIP (a) BVIA (a)
Current assets 348 898 26,078 17,405,119 18,407 460 109 172
Long-term assets 18,607 91,211 26,102,932 10518298 - -
Total assets 367,505 117,289 43,508,042 28,925,758 109 172
Current habihities 81,601 39,693 24,924 516 3,252,967 - -
Long-term liabiliies 30,597 - 17.882 206 24,176,936 - -
Stockholders’ equity 255,307 77586 700,830 1,295 855 109 172
Total liabilities 367,505 117,289 43,508,042 28,925,758 109 172
On December 31, 2010
Votorantim VYotorantim BV BY
CTVM DTVM Financeira Leasing
Current assets 370,670 39,451 16,597,695 4.827.970
Long-term assets 18,735 55,685 20,224 875 22,909,290
Total assets 389.405 95,136 36,822,570 27,737,260
Current habihiies 114,797 37,675 10,393 662 6,291,078
Long-term liabilities 25,104 - 25,094,045 20,135,186
Stockholders’ equity 249,504 57,461 1,334,863 1,310,996
Total Labilities 389,403 95,136 36 822,570 27,737,260

(a} On December 31, 2010 the equity position of these companies amounted to less

than one thousand Brazilian Reais (R$ 1,000).




Banco Votorantim S.A.
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i. Equity position of the controlled subsidiaries abroad

2011 2010
BV BV BV
VYBL Securities  Securities UK VBL Securities
Current assets 113,516 11,107 11,667 40,355 13,551
Long-term assets 1,845 442 - 2,054 350
Total assets 115,361 11,549 11,667 42,409 13,901
Current habilities 78,771 530 - 9,007 529
Long-term habilities - - - - -
Stockholders’ equity 36,590 11,019 11,667 33,402 13,372
Total liabilities 115,361 11,549 11,667 42,409 13,901
J-  Equity positions of the investment funds
On December 31, 2011
BV
FINiéhio1  Financeira Votorantim F1 Sedna Other
Renda fixa —(a} FIDCV G&K FIP BVIA FIP Ref DI Funds
Current assets 1,528,534 1,057,126 55,663 470,997 43,425 289,325
Long-term assets - - - - - R
Total assets 1,528,534 1057,126 55,663 470,997 43,425 289,325
Current liabilities 372 3,166 84 70 184
Long-term hiabihiies - - - - - -
Stockholders’ equity 1,528,162 1,053,960 55,580 470927 43421 289 325
Total habilities 1,528,534 1057126 55,663 470,997 43,425 289,325

(a) Banco Votorantim and 1ts BV Financeira subsidiary hold indirectly, through Fundo
Invest Nidbio I Renda fixa [fixed income fund] which as of July 25, 2011, absorbed
100% of the subordinated shares of the Receivables Funds shown in the table below
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BV

BV Financewra BV Financeira Financeira BY Financeira BV Financeira
FIDC | FIDC II FIDC 111 FDC IV FIDC VI
459,053 920,419 693,825 1,765,633 2,726,672
Long-term assets - - - - -
459,053 920,419 693,825 1,765,633 2,726,672
Current liabilities 6,610 3,142 2.905 2.508 2,640
Long-term habihities - . - - -
Stockholders” equity 452,443 917277 690,920 1,763,125 2,724,032
459 053 920,419 693,825 1,765,633 2,726,672

On December 31, 2010

BV BY BV BV BV

Financeira  Financera Financeira Financeira Financeira Other
FIDC 1 FIDC 11 FIDC 111 FIDC IV FIDC VY Funds
555,230 618,066 614,159 513,764 1,077,473 1,570,811
Long-term assets - - - - - -
555,230 618,066 614 159 513 764 1,077,473 1 570,811
Current liabilities 577 912 282 186 1,217 880
Long-term labilities - - - - - -
Stockholders’ equity 554,653 617,154 613,877 513578 1,076,256 1,569,931
Total liahlties 555,230 618,066 614,159 513,764 1,077,473 1,570,811

k. Foreign currency

Monetary assets and habilines denominated and assessed in foreign currencies on the date of
presentation are reconverted to the functional currency at the exchange rate assessed on that

date

Foreign exchange gain or loss in monetary items 1s the difference between the amortized cost
of the functional currency at the beginming of the period, adjusted for interest and effective
payments during the period, and the amortized cost 1n foreign currency at the exchange rate
at the end of the period of presentation On the base date the assets and habilities of the
subsidiary and of the branch located abroad are converted to the currency of presentation
adopted by the Company at the exchange rate effective on the balance sheet date
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L Offset of financial instruments

Financial assets and habilities are only offset and the net amount reported 1n the balance
sheet when there 15 a legally applicable rnght to offset the amounts recogmzed and there 15 an
intention of settling them on a net basis, or of realizing the asset and settling the Lability
simultaneously On December 31, 2011 and 2010 there were no offsets of financial

Instruments

m. Rules and interpretations that came into effect in the year ended December 31,

2011

Amendment to IFRIC 13 - "Customer Loyalty Programmes” - explains the concept of fair
value n cases of ponts awarded under customer loyalty programs Thus altered nterpretation

has not led to any impact for our consolidated financial statements

Amendment to IFRIC 14 — “IAS 19 — The limit on a defined benefit asset, mimimum
funding requirements and their interaction”- removes an unintended consequence of IFRIC
14 related to voluntary prepayments for pension plans with mimuimum funding requirements
This altered interpretation has not led to any impact for our consohdated financial statements

Amendment to IFRIC 19 - "Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments” -
deals with recognition when a debt 1s settled by 1ssuing an equity instrument Stipulates that
gain or loss on settlement of habilities by isswing an equity mstrument must be recognized in
the result This altered interpretation has not led to any impact for our consolidated financial

statements

Amendment to IAS 1 - "Presentation of Financial Statements" - states that an entity must
disclose an analysis of other comprehensive income 1 the Statement of Changes in Equity or
in notes This altered pronouncement has not led to any impact on the consolidated financial

statements

Amendment to IAS 24 - "Related Party Disclosure" - covers new requirements for
relationships with government agencies and excludes transactions between affiliates This

altered pronouncement has not led to any impact on the consolidated financial statements
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Amendment to IAS 27 - "Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements " - states that loss
of conirol over a subsidiary, loss of influence over an affihiate or loss of jomnt control in a
Jjoint venture are similar events and must be recognized and measured at fair value and gains
or losses recogmzed n income Ths altered pronouncement has not led to any impact on the

consolidated financial statements

Amendment to IAS 32 - "Fmancial Instruments Presentation "- states conditions under
which an 1ssue of certain rights, in a functional currency other than an entity's functional
currency may be classified as an equity instrument This altered pronouncement has not led

to any impact on the consolidated financial statements

Alteration of IAS 34 - "Intenim Financial Reporting” - requires disclosure of transactions
and matenal events in interim financial statements This altered pronouncement has not led to

any 1mpact on the consolidated financial statements

Amendment to to IFRS 1 - "First-time Adoption of International Fmancial Reporting
Standards" - covers limited exemptions based on comparative disclosures 1n IFRS 7 This

altered pronouncement has not led to any impact on the consolidated financial statements

Amendment to IFRS 3 - "Business Combinations” - deals with mterests of minonty
shareholders and acquired options This altered pronouncement has not led to any impact on

the consolidated financial statements

Amendment to IFRS 7 - "Financial Instruments Disclosures "- emphasizes the interaction
between quantitative and qualitative disclosures concerming the nature and extent of risks
associated with financial instruments, especially collateral held The effects of these

disclosure requirements are shown in Note 45

n. Rules and interpretations due to come into effect after the period ended December 31, 2011

Amendment to IAS 19 - "Employee Benefits” - this alteration ends the use of the "corridor”
method and all changes shall be posted in Cumulative Other Comprehensive Income This 1s
effective as of January 1, 2013 This altered pronouncement will not lead to impact on the

consohidated financial statements

Amendment to IAS 32 - "Financial Instruments Presentation "- this alteration was 1ssued to
clanfy "offsetting” requirements for financial instruments on the Balance Sheet This change
comes Into effect as of January 1, 2014 Possible impacts of the adoption of this amendment

are being analyzed
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Amendments to IFRS 7 - "Financial Instruments Disclosures

impacts of adopting these alterations are being analyzed

IFRS 9 - "Financial Instruments” - the pronouncement 1s the first step in the process of
replacing 1AS 39 "Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement” IFRS 9 introduces
new requirements for classifying and measuring financial assets and 1s expected to affect
accounting recognition of the conglomerate's financial instruments [t will not come nto

effect untit January 1, 2015, but the IASB allows early adoption

IFRS 10 - "Consohidated Financial Statements" - the pronouncement alters the current
guideline to 1dentify the concept of control as a factor determining when an entity should be
consolhidated IFRS 10 provides additional gumdance to assist in the determination of control
when there are difficulties in certain cases It 15 not effective untif January 1, 2013 Possible

impacts resulting from adoption of this pronouncement are being analyzed

IFRS 11 - "Joint Arrangements" - The pronouncement takes a different approach to the
analysis of "Joint Arrangements" with more focus on rights and obligations under agreements
than on legal forms IFRS 11 divides "Joint Arrangements” into two types "Joint Operations"
and "Joint Ventures", depending on the rnights and obligations of the parties For investments
in "Joint Ventures”, proportionate conselhidation 1s no longer permitted [t 1s not effective
until January 1, 2013 This altered pronouncement will not lead to impact on the consolidated

financial statements

IFRS 12 - "Disclosures of Interests mn Other Entities” - The announcement includes new
disclosure requirements for all forms of imvestment in other entities, such as "Joint
Arrangements", associations and specific-purpose companies It 1s not effective until January

1, 2013 Possible impacts resulting from adoption of this pronouncement are being analyzed

IFRS 13 - "Fair Value Measurement" - The pronouncement aims for closer alignment
between IFRS and US GAAP, with more consistency and less complexity for disclosures,
using precise defintions of fair value It 1s not effective until January 1, 2013 Possible

impacts of adopting the rule are being analyzed
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- an amendment to this
pronouncement was issued 1n October 2010 requiring additional disclosures of transfers of
assets (remaining risks) and transfers near the date of the period These requirements come
into effect as of July 1, 2011 Additionally m December 2011 another alteration of the
pronouncement was 1ssued requiring added disclosure on the "offsetting” process These
requirements come into effect for fiscal years beginning after January |, 2013 Possible
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0. Authorization of the financial statements

The issuance of the financial statements was authorized by the Executive Board on March 29,
2012

Principal accounting practices
a. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are represented by cash, short-term investments i interbank
deposits, 1n foreign currencies and in committed transactions - own resources, maturing
within 90 days

b. Financial instruments with repurchase/resale commitment

Instruments sold with an agreement for repurchase on a specific future date are not written
off the balance sheet, since the Conglomerate retains substantially all the nsks and benefits of
possession The corresponding cash received 1s recognized in the balance sheet as an
obligation of return, including nterest appropriated as a hability, reflecting the effective
substance of the transaction as a debt of the Conglomerate The difference between the
selling price and the repurchasing price 1s treated as interest expense and appropnated
throughout the duration of the agreement using the effective interest rate

Inversely, for instruments acquired with an agreement of resale on a specific future date, the
amount paid, including appropriated nterest, 1s recorded 1n the balance sheet as financial
assets with resale agreement, thus reflecting the economic substance of the transaction The
difference between the purchase price and the resale price 1s recorded n “interest revenue®
and 1s appropnated throughout the term of the agreement using the effective interest rate

c. Financial instruments

Under IAS 39, all financtal assets and lLabilities, including derivatives must be recognized on
the Balance Sheet and measured depending on the category 1n which the mstrument has been
classified

Fimancial assets and liabilines may be classified n the following categones

* Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - held for trading,
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e Financial assets and habilities at fair value through profit or loss - designated at fair
value,

Fmancial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - denvatives,

Financial assets available for sale,

Financ:al assets held to maturity,

Loans and receivables,

Financial habilities at amortized cost

Classificahon depends on the purpose for which financial assets were acquired or hiabihities
assumed Management determines classification of tts financial instruments on 1utial
recogmtion

Banco Votorantim S A management decided to classify 1n its consolidated financial
statements the financial mstruments n the categories which most appropnate reflect the
nature and characteristics of these financial instruments

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recogmzed and / or derecognized on trade
date

Fmancial assets are reversed / derecognized when cash flow receivables expire or when
Banco Votorantim S A transfers substantiaily all nisks and rewards of ownership, thus
justifying derecogmtion (IAS 39) Therefore, if risks and benefits have not been substantially
transferred, Banco Votorantim S A will reassess control and determine whether active
involvement related to any retained control will prevent 1t making the derecogmtion
Financial habilities are derecogmized on hiquidation or extingwmshing

Assets and habilities are offset and reported on the balance sheet at their net amount only
when there 1s a legally enforceable right to offset the recogmized amounts and an intention to
seitle them on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the hability simultaneously

1. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - held for trading - assets acquired
and incurred marnly with the intention of being traded 1n the short term or when part of a
portfolio of financial instruments that are managed as a whote and for which there 1s
evidence of a recent history of short-term sales Derivatives are classified as held for
trading at fair value unless designated and made as accounting hedges Banco Votorantum
S A chose to disclose derivatives on a separate line of the Consolhidated Balance Sheet
(Item (111))
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A financial asset 1s classified at fair value through profit or loss 1f 1t 1s classified as held
for trading or 1s classified as such at the moment of initial recognition

The financial assets are designated for fair value through profit or loss 1f Management
monitors such nvestments and takes purchase and sale decisions based on theiwr farr
values according to the documented risk management and the investmenis strategy of the
Conglomerate After their initial recognition, the financial assets with pre-fixed or post-
fixed remuneration have their amortized cost calculated using the effective interest
method and measured by the fair value The remuneration calculated by the amortized
costs of the financial assets recognized imtially 1s presented n the statement of income as
“Interest revenue”

The remuneration of financial assets held for trading 1s considered applicable 1o the
Banco Votorantim S A ’s trading transactions and 1s presented 1n aggregate form for all
the changes of fair value of assets held for trading in the heading “Result of financial
assets held at fair value through profit or loss™

The changes of fair value are recognized 1n the result for the period and presented 1n the
statement of income as “Result of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”

ii. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - designated at fair value - Assets

designated at fair value through profit or loss on nitial recognition (fair value option)
This designation may not be subsequently altered Under IAS 39, the fair value option
may only be used 1f it reduces or eliminates accounting inconsistencies in the result or 1f
the financial assets comprise a portfolio for which nisk 1s managed and reported to
Management based on 1ts fair value, or if these assets consist of debt instruments and
embedded derivatives that must be separated

Banco Votorantim S A did not have transactions n this class to report 1n 1ts consolidated
financial statements for the year ended December 31,2011 and 2010

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - derivatives -
Denivative financial instruments that do not fulfill the cntenia for hedging have their
adjustments to fair value recorded directly 1n the result for the period and are shown m
the statement of income as “Result of derivative financial instruments”

24




Banco Votorantim S.A.

Explanatory notes to the consolidated financial statements

(in thousands of Brazilian Reats)

Financial nstruments that are combimned with other financial instruments, whether
derivative or not, are treated as distinct financial instruments and are recorded
considering the economic characteristics and the risks directly related to those of the
principal contract

Built-in denvatives are segregated from their principal contracts and recorded
individually, 1f the economic characteristics and risks of the principal contract and of the
bwlt-in dertvative are not mtrinsically related, or if an mdividual instrument with the
same conditions as the built-in derivative fulfills the definition of a denvative

Financial assets available for sale - financial assets avallable for sale are financial
assets that are not classified m any of the above categories After inihal recogmition,
financial assets earning fixed- or floating-rate remuneration are measured at amortized
cost using the effective inierest method and measured at fair value Alterations in fair
value other than impairment losses are recogmzed net of tax effects in shareholders’
equity as "equity valuation adjustments " When an investment 1s derecognized, the result
accrued in shareholders' equity 1s transferred to the period's result

Financial assets held to maturity - If the conglomerate has the intention and capacity to
hold financial assets to maturity, these assets are classified as held to matunity After
inihal recogmition, financial assets earning fixed- or floating-rate remuneration are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method and shown 1n the income
statement as "Interest income" less any impairment loss

Banco Votorantim S A did not have transactions 1n this class to report in its consohdated
financial statements for the year ended December 31,2011 and 2010

Loans and receivables - Loans and receivables are financial assets earning payments
that are fixed or may be calculated, and that are not quoted in an active market Such
assets are tnitially recogmized at fair value plus any attributable transaction costs After
mtial recogmtion, lpans and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment loss Earnings measured at amortized cost
are shown n financial statements as "interest income Loans and receivables used as
hedges for derivatives are measured at fair value, using consistent and venifiable criteria

Alterations of their fair value are recognized in the period's result and shown 1n the
income statement as "Result from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”
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d. Derecognition of financial instruments

1. Financial assets

1.

A financial asset (or an applicable portion of a financial asset or a group of similar assets)
15 derecognized when

e The night to receive the cash flow of the asset has matured,

e The Conglomerate transferred the right to receive the cash flow of the asset or
assumed the obligation of paying the cash flow received, for its total amount, without
material delay, to a third party due to a transfer agreement and 1f

e The Conglomerate has transferred substantially all of the risks and benefits of the
asset, or

e The Conglomerate has not transferred substantially or retained substantially all of the
risks and benefits of the asset, but has transferred control over the asset

Loans and receivables that are more than 360 days overdue are written off against the
provision for losses due to impairment, except when there 1s any expectation of recovery

Financial liabilities

A financial leability 1s wnitten off when the obligation relative to the lLiability 1s
eliminated, cancelled, matured or settled When an existing financial habihity 1s
substituted by another one of the same creditor on substantally different terms, or the
terms of the existing habihty are substantially modified, the change or modification 15
treated as a write-off of the onginal Lhiability and recogmtion of a new hability, and the
difference 1n the book value 1s recognized in profit or loss On December 31, 2011 and
2010, the financial iabilities did not incur any sigmficant substitutions

e. Hedge Accounting

The Conglomerate maintains derivative instruments for financial hedging to protect its
exposures to foreign currency and interest rate nsks
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At the moment of 1utial designation of the hedge, the Conglomerate formally documents the
relationship between the hedge instruments and the items that are subject-matter of hedging,
including the objectives for management of risks and the strategy for conduction of the
hedging transaction, together with the methods that will be used to assess the effectiveness of
the hedge relationship The Conglomerate assesses hedge transactions on inception and
continually monitors thereafter, 1f there 1s an expectation that the hedging mstruments be
“highly effective” in the variances of the fair value of the relevant items that are subject-
matter of hedging during the periods for which the hedge 1s designated, and 1if the actual

result of the each hedge are within a range of 80-125 percent

Denvatives deemed hedges are classified depending on their nature

Fair value hedge - Derivatives classified in this category, as well as the hedged 1tem, have
their fair value adjustments recorded against the period's result and shown 1n the income

statement as "Result from derrvatives”, and

Cash flow hedge - Derivatives classified in this category have their fair value adjustments

recogmzed n shareholders' equity as "equity valuation adjustments”, net of tax effects

f. Determination of the fair value

The fair value of the financial instruments with public quotes 1s based on the current market

prices

For financial assets and liabilities that have no active market, the Conglomerate establishes
the fair value usig evaluation techmques These techniques are establhished with observance

of consistent and venifiable criteria and can include

Comparison with recent transactions contracted with third parties,
Reference to other instruments that are substantially similar,
Analysis of discounted cash flows, and

Conventional and recognized pricing models

The principal additional information on the assumptions used in assessing the fair value 1s

disclosed 1n the specific notes of the relevant asset or lability
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8. Provision for losses due to impairment

A financial asset not measured by the fawr value through profit or loss 1s apprased
periodically to assess 1f there 1s objective evidence that there has been loss due to
imparrment  An asset 1s impaired if the objective evidence shows that an event of loss
occurred after imitial recognition of the asset, and that the event of loss had a negative effect

on the projected future cash flows that can be estimated 1n a rehiable way

The measurement of the recoverable value 1s apphcable to the following financial assets that
are present in the Balance Sheet, whether attributed to the Wholesale segment or to the Retail

segment

o Financial assets with agreement of resale,
e Financial assets “Available for sale”, and
¢ Loans and receivables

In addition to the abovementioned assets, one also takes into account all the items not
ncluded n the balance sheet that show credit risks for the entity, such as corporate/personal

guarantees and other guarantees pledged

The procedures that are applicable for the measurement of the loss of recoverable value
consider the phases of the life cycle of the financial asset, which are ongination / acquisition
of financial assets, the occurrence of objective evidences of impairment, renegotiation of a

financial asset and a wnite-off

Upon the origination or acquisition of financial assets, the Conglomerate does not recognize
any reduction of the recoverable value of the asset, and also does not consider for accounting
purposes any estimated expected losses as a result of future and uncertain events, irrespective

of their probability

The occurrence of objective evidences of loss of recoverable value indicates possible
problems for the recovery of a financial asset, or of a group of financial assets According to
the internal policies of the Conglomerate, the following facts are considered by the mstitution

as being objective evidence of loss of recoverable value

e Non-payment,
e Delay of payment,
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e Restructuring of the amount owed on conditions that the Conglomerate would not

consider in other transactions,

Indications that the debtor or issuer will enter a process of bankruptcy,
The discontinuity of an active market for an instrument

The Conglomerate first assess 1f there 1s “objective evidence of loss of recoverable value” for

*assets that are individually significant” or collectively for “mass-oriented assets”

For this purpose, the Conglomerate’s Credit Risk area considers as “individually significant
assets” those assets whose nominal value 15 equal to or greater than the individually
significant reference value (value corresponding to the application of a percentage on the
Reference Equity) These transactions undergo periodic evaluations (agreement by
agreement) concerning the payment capability of the borrower or of the economic group of
the borrower, the quality of the guarantees offered and fulfillment with all of the conditions

negotiated contractually

Any transactions that do not quahfy at the level defined as “individually significant assets”
will be classified as “mass-oriented” transactions and will be appraised by the Credit Risk

area on a group basis

If an “individually sigmificant asset” shows one or more “objective evidence of loss”, a
provision 1s accrued for the difference between the book value of the asset and the
estimated present value of the cash flows

The level of provisions for reduction to impaired value of the individually sigmficant
balances, defined as being matenal, 1s revised at least on a quarterly basis, and more regularly
when circumstances thus require This normally includes a reassessment of the apphicability

of execution of guarantees maintained and advanced receipts

When assessing the loss due to impairment 1n a mass-oriented form, the Conglomerate uses
an nternal assessment system that considers historical trends of the probability of default, of
the penod for recovery and of the amounts of loss incurred, adjusted to reflect the judgment

of Management
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The portfolio of mass-oriented transactions 1s divided so as to identify groups with
homogeneous levels at the parameters observe of probability of default and of losses
attributed to the default and stabihity of such parameters in a given historical period Each one
of those groups shows distinct level of such parameters The formation of homogenous

groups 1s oriented by criteria such as product, category and timeframe

In these cases, measurement of the provision for losses 15 made based on statistical methods
that take mto consideration the Loss, given the Default (calculated based on histonical data of

losses for cases where the evidences of loss were 1dentified)

The provisions for reduction to impaired value are only reduced when there are reasonable
and objective evidences of favorable alterations m the estimates of loss that had been

previously established

The guarantees pledged are also subject to losses Upon the appearance of objective evidence
of loss due to mpairment of the portfolio of guarantees pledged, the Conglomerate
recognizes the guarantee as a financial hability at fair value In this case, when representing a
transaction covenanted according to market parameters, the fair value 1s equal to the premium
paid by the counterparty At the end of each reporting period, these financial guarantees are
assessed as to the possibiity of their being honored by the Conglomerate and classified as
“probable”, “possible” or “remote” For each one of these classifications a specific

accounting treatment 1s applied

For the case of financial guarantees classified as “probable”, the present value of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation of the institution 1s recogmzed as a
liabihity For those classified as “possible”, the present value of the expenditure required to
settle the oblhigation 1s disclosed m explanatory notes For those guarantees classified as
“remotes”, no additional procedure 1s carried out by the entity On December 31, 2011 and

2010, no probable losses were 1dentified for financial guarantees

The reduction of the recoverable value of a financial asset, measured by the amortized cost,
calculated based on the difference between the book value and the present value of estimated
future cash flows 1s recogmized 1n profit or loss and shown 1n the statement of income as
“Result of losses due to impairment”, with the balancing entry m a provision account When
a subsequent event shows reversal of the loss of value, the reduction 1n the loss of value 15

reversed and recorded 1n profit or loss
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Whenever possible, the Conglomerate seeks to restructure debts instead of taking possession
of the guarantee This can involve an extension of the term for payment and an agreement on
the new conditions of the loan Management conducts continual revision of the renegonated
loans to ensure that all the criteria are fulfilled and that future payments will occur The loans
continue to be subject to individual or collective assessment of reduction due to impairment,

calculated by using the effective original rate of the loan

h. Assignment of financial assets

When applytng the accounting practices to assigned financial assets, the Conglomerate has
considered the degree of transfer of the risks and benefits of the transferred assets to another

entity

e When the Conglomerate has transferred financial assets to another entity, but did not
substanteally transfer all the risks and benefits related to the transferred assets, the assets

remain recognized in the balance sheet of the Conglomerate

s When the Conglomerate transfers substantially all the risks and benefits related to the
transferred assets to an entity that 1s not controlled, the assets are written off the balance

sheet of the Conglomerate

¢ When the Conglomerate does not transfer or retain substantially all of the nsks and benefits
related to transfetrred financial assets, and retains control of the transferred assets, the
Conglomerate continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of its continuity in

the involvement of the transferred financial asset

In the course of its activities, the Conglomerate carries out transactions that result in the

transfer of financial assets to third parties or to Funds for Investment in Credit Rights

However, the credit nisks of these transactions are substanually retained In this way, the
Conglomerate continues to recognize these transactions n 1ts balance sheet in an associated

liability

i. Non-current assets held for sale

The long-term assets and groups of assets held for sale are classified as mtended for sale 1f
their book value 1s recovered principally by means of sale instead of continual use This
condition 15 only fulfilled when the sale 1s highly probable and the long-term asset 1s
available for immediate sale 1n 1ts current condiion Management must be commutted to the
sale, which 1s expected, upon recognition, to be considered as a sale completed within one

year from the date of classification
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Carrying amounts for these items are intially recorded in the balance sheet at whichever 1s
lower, (a) fair value of assets less estimated cost of their sale, (b) the carrying amount of the

loan

Disposal of these assets 15 carried out m their current conditions through perniodic official
auctions, and they may be maintained as non-current assets for a penod of one (1) year,

which may be prolonged with consent from the regulatory agency (Central Bank of Brazil)

J- Contingent assets

Contingent assets are recognized in the financial statements only when there 1s evidence that
gives rise to assurance of their realization, on which no further recourses are pertinent,
characterizing the earnings as practically certain There 1s no contingent asset recogmzed 1n

these financial statements

k. Tangible assets

Tangible assets are recognized at the cost of acquisition, after deduction of the relevant
depreciation account Depreciation 1s calculated by the linear method, based on the following

annual rates

[nstallations, furmiture and equipment for use - 10%,
Communication, security and transportation systems - 10%,
Data processimng systems and leased assets - 20%,

[ ]
[ ]
®
* Improvements to third party property - term of the lease agreement

Purchased software that 1s a constituent part of the functionality of equipment 1s capitalized

as a part of the equipment
The assets are subject to the assessment of recoverable value at annual periods

1. Intangible assets

Development activities that involve a project aimed at the production of new or substantially
enhanced products The development expenditures are only capitalized 1f the costs of
development can be measured reliably, if the product or process is technically and
commercially viable, if the future economic benefits are probable and if the Conglomerate

has the intention and the sufficient resources to complete the developtment and use the asset
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Intangible assets include rights that have as theiwr subject-matter the intangible assets intended
for the maintenance of the company or that are exercised with such a purpose The
amortization 1s calculated using the linear method, based on the following periods

s Licenses and software - Term of the agreement for use
» Commercialization nghts agreement - Term of the agreement
» Corporate projects — Period in which the future economic benefits are expected

The assets are subject to assessment of recoverable value at annual periods
m. Taxes and contributions on income

Income tax has been assessed based on a rate of 15%, with an additional surtax of 10%, while
social contribution has been assessed based on a rate of 15% for financial institutions and 9%
for non-financial nstitutions, both applicable to taxable income, and considers the offset of
tax losses and negative base of social contribution, limited to 30% of taxable income

Income tax and social contribution expenses comprise the current and deferred taxes and
contributions on income Current tax and deferred tax are recogmized n profit or loss unless
they are recogmzed 1n stockholders’ equity

Current income tax 15 the current income tax habuity expected based on the taxable income
or loss for the fiscal year

Deferred tax assets are established according to a study prepared by the Management of the
capabihty of realization

Deferred tax i1s generated by temporary differences on the balance sheet date between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their book values for purposes of financial disclosure

Deferred tax assets are recogmized for all the deductible temporary differences, unused tax
credits and losses, to the extent that 1t 1s probable that taxable income 1s available so that the
deductible temporary differences can be realized

The book value of the deferred tax assets 1s revised monthly and written off to the extent that
it 15 no longer probable that taxable income wall be available to permit that all or a portion of
the deferred tax asset may be used Deferred tax assets wntten off are reassessed on each
balance sheet date and are recogmized to the extent that it becomes probable that future
taxable income will enable the deferred tax assets to be recovered
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Deferred tax assets and habilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to be
applicable n the year in which the asset 1s realized or the liability 1s settled, based on the tax

rates that were applicable on the balance sheet date

n. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial habilites at fair value through profit or loss are recorded and measured at farr
value, and any change in fair value 1s immediately recogmzed in income Under international
accounting standards (IAS 39), this asset category may be divided into two distinct

categories

(1) Financial liablities at fair value through profit or loss - designated at fair value -
Banco Votorantim S A had no financial hability at fair value through profit or loss -

designated at fair value 1n its portfolio in the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

(ir) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - held for trading - Financial
habihities at fair value through profit and loss - held for trading recognmized by Banco
Votorantim S A correspond to derivatives, unless designated and effective as hedges or
designated to financial habihities at fair value through profit or loss on inital

recogmtion (farr value option) This designation may not be subsequently altered

Under 1AS 39, the fair value option may only be used 1f 1t reduces or eliminates
accounting inconsistencies in the result or 1f the financial assets comprise a portfolio for
which risk 15 managed and reported to Management based on 1ts fair value, or 1f these

assets consist of debt instruments and embedded derivatives that must be separated

o. Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Financial liabihties at amortized cost are recognized imtially by their fair value, with addition
of any attnibutable transaction costs After imtial recognition, these financial habilities are
measured by the amortized cost using the effective interest method The charges calculated

by the amortized cost are shown in the statement of income as “interest expense”
p. Financial liabilities associated with transferred assets

Financial hiabihities associated with transferred assets consist of

*» The contractual obligations established with the acquinng assignees of loans and
receivables portfolios with a joint Liability clause or significant retention of credit nsk,

and
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¢ The equity position of the unit holders that participate 1n funds for investment 1n credit
rights, consolidated 1n these financial statements, according to explanatory notes Nos 2e

and 2

The financial habilities with assignees are mmtially recognized by thewr fair value, with
addition of any attributable transaction costs After initral recognition, these financial
habilitties are measured by the amortized cost, using the effective interest method The
charges calculated by the amortized cost are shown 1n the statement of income as “interest

expense”

q. Deposits by financial institutions and clients

Deposits by financial institutions and clients are inttially recognized by their fair value, with
the addition of any attributable transaction costs After imitial recognition, these deposits are
measured by the amortized cost through the effective interest method The charges calculated

by the amortized cost are shown n the statement of income as “interest expense”

r. Loans and onlendings, securities issued and subordinated liabilities

Loans and onlendings, securities 1ssued and subordinated habilities are imtially recognized
by their fair value, with addition of any attributable transaction costs After imtial recogmtion
these liabilities are measured by the amortized cost through the effective interest method The
charges calculated by the amortized cost are shown n the statement of income as “interest

expense”

The loans and onlendings, securities 1ssued and subordinated Liabilities that are subject-matter
of hedging of derivative financial instruments are appraised by thewr fair value using a
consistent and verifiable criterion The changes of their fair value are recognized in the profit
or loss for the period and are shown in the statement of income as “Result of the financial

habilities at fair value through profit or loss”

5. Provisions

Contingent liabilities are recogmzed 1n the financial statements when, based on the opimon of
legal advisors and of Management, a risk of loss 1s considered probable 1n a judicial or

administrative action, with probable expenditure of funds for settlement of the obligations,
and when the amounts involved are measurable with sufficient reliabihty
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Contmgent habilities classified as possible losses are not recogmzed, and are only disclosed
in the explanatory notes, while those classified as remote do not require provision or
disclosure
t. Legal obligations
The legal obligations are judicial proceedings related to tax obligations, whose object of
contestation 1s their legahty or constitutionahity, which have their amounts fully recognized in
the financial statements, based on the Management’s risk analysis
u. Other assets and other liabilities
Other assets are shown at realization value, including, when applicable, earnings and
monetary and foreign exchange variances earned and a provision for loss when deemed

necessary

Other habihities are shown at known or calculable amounts, with the addition of charges and
of any monetary and foreign exchange variances incurred

v. Capital stock
Common shares
Common shares are classified as stockholders’ equity Additional costs that are directly
attributable to the 1ssuance of shares are recognized as deductions 1o stockholders® equity, net
of any tax effect On December 31, 2011 and 2010, there were no costs directly attnbutable
to the 1ssuance of shares

Preferred shares

Preferred capital 1s classified as stockholders’ equity Preferred shares have no voung rights
and have preference for settlement of their portion of the capital stock

The minimum compulsery dividends, as defined n the by-laws, are recogmzed as habilities
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w. Reserves
Capital reserves
The capital reserve 1s accrued as premium in the subscription of shares
Profit reserves - Legal reserve
Accrued compulsonly based on 5% of the net income obtained according to the corporate
accounting for the period, unti reaching a himut of 20% of capital stock obtained from the
same corporate base The legal reserve may cease to be constituted when, increased by the
amount of capital reserves, exceeding 30% of capital stock The capital reserve may only be
used for the increase of capital or to offset losses
Profit reserves - Reserve for expansion
At the end of the fiscal year Management proposes the allocation of undistributed profit to
“Reserve for Expansion”, accrued after the other allocations The balance of the reserve 1s
available for the shareholders for future resolution 1n a Shareholders’ Meeting
Dividends for common and preferred shares
Dividends for common and preferred shares are recogmzed as a liabihity and deducted from
stockholders’ equity when approved by the shareholders Dividends on internim dates are
deducted from stockholders’ equity when declared and are not subject to future resolution

by the Conglomerate

Drvidends for the year that were approved after the balance sheet date are disclosed as a
subsequent event to the balance sheet date

X. Payment based on shares

The Bank does not have a program of payments based on shares

37




Banco Votorantim S.A.

Explanatory notes to the consolidated financial statements

(in thousands of Brazilian Reas)

y. Interest revenues and expenses

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest-bearing financial assets that
are classified as available for sale and financial instruments designated at fair value through
profit or loss, the interest revenues or expenses are recorded using the effective interest rate
The calculation takes nto consideration all of the contractual terms of the financial
instrument and includes any incremental fees or costs that are directly attributable to the
instrument and are constituent parts of the effective rate, but not of the future credit losses
The book value of a financial asset or hability 1s adjusted when the Bank revises its estimates

of payments and receipts

2 Revenues and expenses from services and commission fees

The Conglomerate earns revenue from services and comtnission fees through various types of
services that 1t provides for its clients Fees earned from providing services 1in the course of

the period are appropriated 1n the course of the same period

For revenues from holding fees for loan commutments, where the credit will probably not be
used, the revenue 1s recognized tn the course of the term of the commitment using the linear

method

aa. Revenues from dividends

Revenues from dividends are recognized when the right to recerve 1s established Dividends
are reflected as a component of ‘Result of financial assets booked at fair value by means of
profit or loss® or in ‘Other operating revenue’, according to the classification of the

wstrument of capital

bb. Operating segments

Management admirustrates the operating result of its business units separately in order to take

decisions concermng allocation of resources and performance evaluations
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The performance of the segment 1s appraised based on the profit or loss of the operation,
which n certamn cases s measured differently from operating profit or losses in the
consolidated financial statements

Interest revenues are reported net, since the Management depends first on the net interest
revenue as a measure of performance, and not on gross revenue and expenses

Transfer prices between operating segments are conducted at market prices, in a form that 1s
similar to the transactions carried out with third parties

cc. Administration of investment funds

The Conglomerate manages and administrates assets held in investment funds and other
categories of investment 1n favor of the investors The financial statements for these funds are
not consolidated 1n the consolidated financial statements of the Conglomerate, except for
those of funds that are controlled by the Conglomerate Information on the admimistration of
funds by the Conglomerate 1s available in Explanatory Note No 2J

Cash and cash equivalents

2011 2010

Cash available 188,188 150,639
Cash 420 301
Bank deposits 81,199 68,237
Cash and cash equivalents in foreign currencies 106,569 82,101
Interbank liquidity investments 5,406,716 1,349,342
Commutted trans - Own position 4,062,765 590,873
Investments in interbank deposits 1,087,331 671,142
Investments in foreign currencies 256,620 87,327
Total 5,594,904 1,499,981
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Financial assets with resale agreement

Commtted trans. - Own position
Federal Treasury Bulls

National Treasury Notes

Others

Committed trans. - Financed position
Financial Treasury Bills

Federal Treasury Bills

National Treasury Notes

Committed trans. - Short position

National Treasury Notes

Total

2011 2010
Market Market

Value Fair Value of Value Fair Value of
{book) Guarantee (book) Guarantee
3,305,384 3,064,960 1,933,743 1,919,067
662,173 675,296 224,835 224,511
2,643,211 2,389,664 1,682,309 1,667,957
- - 26,599 26,599
6,312,841 6,383,763 7,792,317 7,795,548
2,465,337 2,471,265 - -
3,649,107 3,712,412 5,817,573 5,816,298
198,397 200,086 1,974,744 1,979,250
- - 2,530,313 2,523,392
- - 2,530,313 2,523,392
9,618,225 9,448,723 12,256,373 12,238,007
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Financial assets

a. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

2011 2010
Unreahzed Unreahzed
Cost Fair value profit / Cost Fair value profit /
value (book) (loss) value _{book) (loss)
In Brazl 8 235 321 8 320.60! 85,280 9,412,621 9,590,697 178,076
Financial Treasury Bills 727,758 727,805 47 615,130 617,191 2,061
Federal Treasury Bills 515,304 515,164 {143) 753,671 754,824 1153
Nauonal Treasury Notes 2 778,912 2,820,015 41,103 5,770,153 5,806,977 36,824
Real Estate Receipts
Ceruf 12,247 12,247 - 7,148 7,148 -
Debentures 261,573 291,183 29610 308,626 350,933 42,307
Agrarian Debt
Instruments 31,468 33,118 1,650 53,981 55,153 1LI72
Rural Product Certificates 401 986 416,603 14,617 457,896 466,384 8488
Promissory Noles 101,507 101,507 - 31,137 31,119 (18)
Unuts of Invest Funds 2,578 349 2,578,349 - 985,414 985,414 -
FIDC Units (Receivables
Funds) 289,325 289,325 - 96.214 96,214 -
Shares of public
companics 69 800 68,196 (1,604) 90,050 88,945 (1,105
Shares of non-public
companies 467,092 467,092 - 243,201 330,395 87,194
Abroad 1 678,688 1,691,203 12 515 3593 380 3,520 663 CPNAY)]
Foreign Governments 1,376 790 1,383,392 6,602 1,802,020 1,803,016 996
National T'reasury 104,069 106,299 2,230 279,270 283,821 4,551
Othets Instruments 197,829 201 512 3.683 1.512,090 1433 826 {78,264)
Total 9,914,009 10,011,804 97,795 13 006,001 13,111,360 105 359
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b. Financial assets available for sale

2011 2010
Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Fair value profit / Cost Fair value profit /
value (book) (loss) value {book) (loss)
In Brazl 15 443 681 15372 330 (71351) 8.587.295 8,489,177 (98,119}
Fiancial Treasury Bills 5,145,765 5,125.335 (20,430) - - -
National Treasury Notes 5,968,134 6,011,139 43005 4,826,837 4,771,068 (55,769)
Real Estate Receipts Certaif 16,154 17 000 846 26,939 28,638 1,699
Debentures 1,384,942 1,352 215 (32,727 1,299,780 1,325,597 25,817
Promissory Notes 261,144 261,126 (18) - - -
Units of Invest Funds 372,996 372,996 - 1,730 1,730 -
FIDC Unats (Recervables
Funds) 427,238 427,238 - 555,366 555,366 -
Shares of public companies 62,326 54,343 (7,983) 203,452 217,054 13,601
Shares of non-pubhic
companies 1,700,040 1,688,436 (1,604) 1,578,387 1,535,092 (43,295)
Other shares 6 6 - 6 6 -
Tax incentive investments 104,759 62,319 (42,440) 94,621 54,449 (40,172)
Equity secuniuies 177 177 - 177 177 -
Abroad 713 209 673 139 (40 070) 330,127 307,081 (23.046)
Other Instruments 713,209 673,139 (40,070) 330,127 307,081 {23,046)
Total 16,156.890 16,045,469 (111,421) 8,917.422 8,796,258 {121,165)
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Derivative financial instruments

a. Breakdown in equity accounts

2011 2010
Assets
Swap differences receivable 936,599 794,567
Currency term forward contracts 1,561 538
Acquisition of purchase options - Shares 5,886 4,625
Acguisition of selling aptions - Shares 796 9,368
Acqusition of purchase options - Fin /Comm
assets 448,504 194,521
Acquisition of selling options - Fin /Comm
Assets 32,821 319,989
Credit derivatives 45,216 346,888
Non-deliverable forwards 176,431 114,964
Others 29,130 3,965
Total 1,676,944 1,789,425
Laabilities
Swap differences payable 851,589 1,167,609
Currency term forward contracts 935 171
Sale of purchase options - Shares 1,170 3.817
Sale of selling options - Shares 339 2,970
Sale of purchase options - Fin /Comm  assets 379,642 260,326
Sale of selling options - Fin /Comm Assets 157,677 89,081
Credit derivatives 36,146 190,406
Non-deliverable forwards 47,120 116,951
Others 7.386 63,290
Total 1,482,004 1,894,621
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b. Breakdown of swap contracts by indicator

2011 2010
Ongmnal Cunve Fair Onginal Curve Fair
amount amount value amount amount value

Asset position 26.413.149 28,598,238 29,802,418 27,276,161 28,964,951 28,880,644
DI {Interbank
Deposits) 11 788,416 12,212,857 13 261,785 9,003,016 10,221,170 10,231 353
Dollar 4,561,641 5,129,083 5,219 953 4,913,473 4,633,463 4,676,572
Euro 479,815 504,654 506,797 152,730 150,550 151,096
[GPM (General 1,172,403 1,509,120 1,536,882 980,573 1233364 1,249,515
Market Price Index)
[PCA (Broad
Consumer Prices 3 774,454 4,153,412 4,179,558 1,998,340 1,671,213 1,499,340
Index)
Prefixed 2,344,148 2,751,801 2,795,384 3,195918 4,018,491 4,027,535
Libor 1,566,664 1,534,893 1,517,827 2,666 2,666 2,666
Yen - - - 33,844 33,778 33,863
Swiss Franc 441,047 501,328 511,258 441,047 445,642 454,112
Commodities 3,192 16,720 2,999 6,554,554 6,554,614 6,554,592
Others 281,369 281,370 269,975 - - -

Liability positign 26,413,149 28,216,829 _ 29,717.408 27 276,161 29.427.280 29,253,686

DI 7 802,011 8,695,648 8,710,616 5,637,232 6211,321 6,196,975
Dollar 2,144,944 2,357,482 2,391,096 3,345,816 3,255 515 32671,736
Euro 88,792 89,228 £9.073 140,129 137,640 138,167
IGPM (General

Market Price Index) 837,270 1,203,870 1,229,837 892,270 1193,484 1,210,735
IPCA (Broad

Consumer Prices

Index) 5411,638 6 870,856 7,054 138 5,589,428 6,013,227 5,922,478
Prefixed 9.518.811 8,390 047 9,665,522 5026,120 5,961,101 5,861,674
Libor 345,964 331,402 303.892 2,666 2,666 2,666
Yen - - - 33,478 33,978 34.064
TILP (Long-Term

Interest Rate) 247,121 255,276 249 476 39,247 44,025 44,025
Commodities 4270 4,150 3,950 6,556,445 6,556,453 6,556,408
Others 12 328 18 870 19.808 13,330 17.870 18.758
Net difference - 381 409 85010 - (462.329) (373,042)
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¢ Breakdown of forward contracts by indicator

d.

2011 2010
Ornginal Curve Fair Original Curve Fair
amount amount value amount amount value
Assets position
Currency term
forward contracts 16,969 1,561 1,561 16,778 538 538
Total 16,969 1,561 1,561 16,778 538 538
Laability position
Currency term
forward contracts 7,884 935 935 17,955 171 171
Total 7,884 935 935 17,955 171 171
Breakdown of option agreements by indicator
2011 2010
Contracted Fair value Contracted Fair value
amount (book) amount {book)
Long position
Dollar 5,689.314 360,527 6,166,038 156,175
Index 112,383 1,599 70,000 1,977
DI 248,425,587 27,616 510,845,318 344,231
Shares 177,824 6,682 105,605 13,993
Commodities 770 2 359,138 856
Flexible 1,662,055 91,581 5,007,326 11,271
Total 256,067,933 488,007 522,553,425 528,503
Short position
Dollar 9,990,840 348,182 9,359,763 69,964
Index 200,640,079 86,048 165,200 1,577
DI 688 54,257 465,653,280 161,119
Shares 122,726 1,509 391,400 6,787
Commodities 19,769 1,648 165,325 225
Flexible 2,085,477 47,184 6,672,349 116,522
Total 212,859,579 538,828 482,407.317 356,194
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e. Breakdown of future contracts by indicator

2011 2010
Purchase commitment 75,672,583 43,775,964
DDI 12,615,757 8,549,436
Dollar 285,048 1,746,739
DI 61,717,665 31,853,930
Commodities 8.886 -
T-Note - 54,118
Index 52,577 -
BGI - 288,956
SCC 577,702 891,161
Currency Exchange Coupon 414,948 391,624
Selling commitment 79,210,346 95,353,657
DDI 12,527,641 7,344,453
Euro 17,814 212,282
Dollar 635,806 807,292
DI 65,051,440 85,483,888
Commodities 33,911 28,640
T-Note 330,588 588,117
Index 35,993 -
BGI 96 -
SCC 576,660 887,059
Currency Exchange Coupon 397 -
Others - 1,926
Net difference {3,537,763) {51,577,693)
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f- Breakdown of NDF (non-deliverable forwards} by indicator

Assets
Dellar
Euro
Yuan
Reais
Others

Total

Liability
Dollar
Euro
Yuan
Reais
Others

Total

Net difference

2011 2010
Contracted Fair value Contracted Fair value
amount (book) amount {(book)
2,084,285 99,912 2,430,964 36,899
12,517 3i3 1,020 2,434
112,548 2,579 - -
351,712 73,487 - -
4230 140 22,324 75,631
2,565,292 176,431 2,454,308 114,964
1,153,822 36,632 1,502,367 89,665
1,216 11 29,399 2,325
112,548 1,397 - -
49,708 8,793 - -
3,090 287 1,099 24,961
1,320,384 47,120 1,532,865 116,951
1,244,908 129,311 921,443 (1,987)
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Credit derivatives
2011 2010
Reference Market Reference Market
amount value amount value
Risk received
Credit swaps 3,132,586 (20,798) 3,782,274 (6,975)
Credit linked notes - - 304,915 320,541
Total 3,132,586 (20,798) 4087189 313,566
Risk transferred
Credit swaps 946,491 (29,868) 1,611,215 225
Credit linked notes - - 141,027 147,544
Equity hinked notes - - 9,164 9,315
Total 946,491 {29,868) 1,761,406 157,084
Credit derivatives by indicator
2011 2010
Original Curve Market Onginal Curve Market
amount amount value amount amount value
Assets position
Prefixed 2,644,090 29,164 45,216 4,087.189 319,623 346,888
Total 2,644 090 29,164 45216 4,087.189 319,623 346,888
Liability position
Prefixed 1,434,987 4,507 36,146 1,761,407 154,320 190,406
Total 1,434,987 4,507 36,146 1,761,407 154,320 190,406
Net difference 1,209,103 24,657 9,070 2,325,782 165,303 156,482
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i. Hedge accounting derivatives

Hedged items 2011 2010
Unrealized Unrealized
Cost  Market earnings / Cost Market earnings/
Swap - hability position amount value (loss) amount value (loss)
Dollar 485,492 490,980 {5,488) 431,244 436,353 (5,109)
Total 485,492 490,980 (5,488) 431,244 436,333 (5,109}
Hedging Instruments 2011 2010

Future market - buy commitment

DDI 488 279 433 765
Total 488 279 433 765
Result from hedging in period 2011 2010
Dervative financial instruments - Hedged 1tems (73 338) 11246
Dernvative financial instruments - Hedging Instr 58 418 (10937}
Total (14 920) 309
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Loans and receivables

a. Breakdown of the transactions

Advances to depositors

Loans

Discounted trade bills

Financing

Export financing

Financing n foreign currency

Rural financing

Real estate financing

Advances on foreign exchange contracts
Financial leasing transactions*
Credits assigned with co-hability
Credits assigned without co-hability
Others

Total transactions with characteristics of

granting of credit

Provision for losses due to impairment
Associated costs
Other receivables

Total loans and recervables

2011 2010
895 784
16 168 797 14 116 706
61127 27 080
34126 401 33715 406
3429 810 2638 709
550 594 270 727
877329 1333 247
234 220 110 277
748 484 537799
3424935 4391 145
15343 709 11237 178
4 834 530 2226 650
- 23 553

79 800 831 70 629 261

(3702 271) (1052 182)
1778 114 1 059 062
8272 004 § 159737
86 148 678 78 795 878

* The leasing portfolio broken down by maturity was shown as follows

Future mimmiumum

payments Unearned discount Present value
Under 1 year 4148 901 (1 224 782} 2924119
1-5 years 2004712 (1 503 886) 500 826
QOver 5 years - (10} (10)
Total 6153613 (2 728 678) 3424 935
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b. Breakdown of other receivables

2011 2010
[nvestrments in interbank deposits 1297 505 1 399 268
Deposits with Central Bank 5846931 6212534
[nterbank onlendings 157 524 72219
Relations with correspondents 28 460 25670
Earnings receivable 22522 27674
Amounts receivable from related companies 122 7 149
Credit card transactions 281 823 188 660
Settlement of foreign instruments 233 7141 191 156
Benefits from using rights of shares in non-public companies 292 521 -
Trading and intermediation of securities 109 115 33531
Others 1 740 1 876
Total 8272 004 8 159 737
c. Provision for losses due to impairment
2011 2010
Loans and receivables (3 158 572) (998 514)
Assigned credits (543 699) (53 668)
Total (3702 271) (1 052 182)
d. Loans and receivables subject to hedge accounting

Hedged items 2011 2010
Market Market Unrealized
Cost value Cost value carnings /
amount {book) Unreahzed earmings / (loss) amount (book) (loss)
Loans and financing 40 102 039 40993 471 891432 35203292 35462692 259400
Leasing transactions 3346786 3424935 78149 4543427 4609 835 66 408
Total 43 448 825 44 418 406 969 581 39 746719 40072 527 325 809
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Hedging instruments
Future market - sell commitment

DIl
DDl
Dollar

Total

Result from hedging in period

Hedged loans and receivables
Hedging derivatives

Total

Current tax assets

Income tax to compensate

Social contribution to compensate

PIS (Social Integration Program) to compensate
COFINS (Social Contribution for Financing of Social
Securnity) to compensate

Other assets

Total
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2011 2010
(44 279 019) (37 695 873)
(2 597 358) (1915 292)
(42 206) -
(46 918 583) (39611 165)
2011 2010
1178111 387 996
(1175 154) (365 270
2957 22 726
2011 2010
577411 361 944
274 171 183 622
15 783 15 477
96 212 71 496
1 624 2 569
965 201 635 108
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Deferred tax assets

a.

Breakdown of deferred tax assets

IR (income tax) losses

CS (social contribution) negative base
Adjustment to fair value of financial assets
Adjustment o fair value of derivatives
Provision for losses due to impairment
Provisions

Derivatives — non accrual

Legal obligations

Depreciation shortfall

Result of branches abroad

Others

Total

Deferred tax assets activity in the period

Beginming balance

IR {income tax) tax loss

CS (social contribution) negative base
Adjustment to fair value of financial assets
Adjustment o fair value of denvatives
Profit sharing

Provision for losses due to impairment
Provisions

Derivatives —non accrual

Result of branches abroad
Depreciation shortfall

Others

Ending balance
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2011 2010
856 508 833 828
37674 56 788
19 603 3972
105 734 2720
1614 281 775 298
134 519 43 475
- 1 600

223 003 223 003
(268 250) -
138433 94 488
38542 5509
2900047 2040681
2011 2010
2040 681 1647 132
22 680 329 867
(19 115) (16 311)
15 631 (50 146)
103014 806
- (14

838 983 126 099
91 044 15115
(1 600) (14 936)

43 945 -
(268 230) -
33 034 3 169
2900 047 2 040 681
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¢. Expectation of realization of deferred tax assets

In 2012
In2013
in2014
In 2015
In 2016
As from 2017

Total

Non-current assets held for sale

Assets not for own use

Properties
Vehicles

Total

2011

2011

Book
value

377363
1172021
214 124
125 135
206 230

805174

2 900 047

2010

4326
97 500

2380
84 950

101 826

87330
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Other assets

2011 2010
Foreign exchange purchased to be settled 856 544 1221375
Rights of sale of foreign exchange 9625 643 639
Advances in local/foreign currency recerved (4 504) (585 205)
Record and settlement cash 1579t 17118
Settlement account debtors outstanding 28762 4408
Financial assets and commodity transactions to be settled - 46 627
Salary advances 2980 3079
Advances to suppliers 3184 2755
Guarantee deposit debtors 495 789 125 180
Insurance expenses - 1 163
Data processing expenses - 3075
Financial system service expenses - 4929
Specialized technical service expenses - 15291
Others 60 S04 107015
Total 1469 075 1 610 449
Tangible assets
2011 2010
Depreciation/ Depreciation/
Cost amortization Net Cost amortization Net
Fixed assets in construction in - 111 111 - 1t
[nstallations 4% 795 {6 040) 43 755 18 568 (1522) 17046
Furniture and equipment for use 55433 {18 854) 36 579 49258 (14 286) 34972
Communications system 11 966 (7 069) 4 897 11 806 (6 097) 5709
Data processing system 73 580 (52 346) 21234 68 630 {42 148) 26482
Security system 2308 (718) 1 590 2202 (524) 1678
Transportation system 1 685 (1493) 192 1672 {1236) 436
Improvements to third party
properties 43 164 (12 594) 30 570 33 860 {39 966) 43 894
Total 238 042 (99 114) i38 928 236 107 (105 779) 130 328
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2011 2010
Beginming balance 130 328 101 978
Acquisitions 45467 72 985
Retirements {3 709) (18 335)
Depreciationfamortization (33 158) {26 300}
Ending balance 138 928 130 328

On December 31, 2011 and 2010, no relevant asset with impairment indicators has been

identified

Intangible assets

2011 2010
Cost Accumulated Cost Accumulated
amount amortization Net amount amortization Net
BMF&Bovespa SISBEX (dollar
trading system) - - - 200 - 200
Software without physical 4031 (971) 3 060 3069 (681) 2388
substance
Licenses 17 243 (5 355) 11 888 10 066 (2231) 7 835
Commetcialization rights 5 000 (1 165) 3835 5000 (415) 4585
agreement
STI - AMBID 3 531 (252) 3279 - - -
Corporate projects 20 266 - 20 266 7035 - 7035
Total 50071 (7 743) 42 328 25370 {3327) 22043
2011 2010
Begimning balance 22043 5149
Acquisitions 31550 19 026
Retirements (7 226) -
Amortization (4039) (2 132)
Ending balance 42328 22 043

On December 3t, 2011 and 2010, no relevant asset with impairment indicators has been

identified
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Expected realization of intangible assets

In 2012
In 2013
In 2014
In 2015
In 2016
As from 2017

Total

In Brazil
Committed transactions - Free
actvity
Creditors for loaned shares
Other Instruments

2011
Book
value
4 529
4529
4529
2337
741
25 663
42 328
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

2011 2010
Cost Fawr value Unrealized Cost Fair value Unreahzed
amount (book) profit / (loss) amount (book)  profit/ (loss)
8 481 8 465 16 2595165 2599011 (3 846)
4181 4169 12 25 565 24 966 599
109 495 111 072 (1577) - - R
122 157 123 706 (1 549) 2 620 730 2623 977 (3247)

Totat
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(in thousands of Brazilian Reais)

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Commutted transactions - Own portfelio

Financial Treasury Bills
Federal Treasury Bills
National Treasury Notes
Banking deposit certificate
Debentures

Own secunities 1ssued
Other securities abroad
Others

Committed transactions - Third party portfolios

Financial Treasury Bills
Federal Treasury Bills
National Treasury Notes

Options box
Fixed income strategy

Total

Financial liabilities associated with transferred assets

Assignees
FIDC (Receivables Funds) unit holders
Other habilities

Total
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2011 2010
27 111 269 24 821 784
6537 368 918
1232272 579 083
4204 975 5257 535
9170 1161
634 814 1112477
20 029 599 16 604 896
102 628 14 284
891 274 883 430
6326 734 6 860 675
2 465 628 -
3662673 5761 542
198 433 1099133
1 928 765 2315982
i 928 765 2315982
35 366 768 33 998 441
2011 2010
17 522 792 12 862 398
5612 141 2269478
350 040 204 368
23 484 973 15 336 744
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(in thousands of Brazilian Reais)

Financial institution deposits

Interbank deposits

Total

Client depeosits

Demand deposits
Term deposits
Other deposits

Total

Loans and onlendings

Loans in Brazil
With foreign exchange vanance

Loans Abroad
With foreign exchange vanance

Oanlendings 1n Brazil - National Treasury
Pre-fixed

Onlendings in Brazil - BNDES (National Economic and Social
Development Bank)

Pre-fixed

Post-fixed

With foreign exchange vanance

Onlendings in Brazil - FINAME (Government Financing for
Machinery and Equipment)

Pre-fixed

Post-fixed

Total
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2011 2010
2 856 203 726 266
2 856 203 726 266
2011 2010
431 760 308931
22 336 676 22 562 609
- 150
22 768 436 22 871 690

2011 2010

(a) 15279 21357
(b} 5148 118 4237430
(©) 155 089 73338
= 1138657 1538 129
(&) 2265 248 2476 730
0 97038 66 468
(®) 2129639 2251 842
(h) 529 294 589 186
11478 362 11 254 480
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(a) Restatement rate in 2011 040 % p a + foretgn exchange vanance
(b) Restatement rate 1n 2011 040% pa to 7 42% p a + foreign exchange variance

{¢) Restatement rate in 2011 6 75% p a

(d) Restatementrate n2011 150%pa to80%pa
(e) Restatement rate in 2011 908% pa t0991%pa +IPCA/690% pa 1010 50%pa +

TILP

Restatement rate 1n 2011 0 90 % pa to 6 27% p a + foreign exchange variance
p P

(g) Restatement rate in 2011 030%pa 10980%pa, and

(h) Restatement rate in 2011 6 50%pa to 11 50% pa + TILP

Loans and transfers subject to hedge accounting

Hedged 1tems

Liability from
foreign borrowings

Total

Hedging instruments

Cash flow Swap - assets position
Euro

Total

Result from hedging in peniod

Hedged loans and onlendings
Hedging denvatves

Total

2011
Market
Cost value Unrealized
amount (book) earmings / (loss)
475 496 477 589 {2 093)
475 496 477 589 {2 093)
2011
Cost Market
amount value  Unrealized earnings / (loss}
475 496 477 771 2275
475 496 477 771 2275
2011
(1900)
8 924
7024
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In the year ended December 31, 2010 the Conglomerate had no loans or onlendings designated
for Hedge Accounting

Securities issued

2011 2010
Debentures
Post-fixed (@) 3131148 1 446 441
Associated costs (16 307) -
With foreign exchange variance - 2521877
Funds of Real Estate Credit Bills
Post-fixed (b) 6 980 4 632
Funds of Agribusiness Credit Bills
Post-fixed (c) 1635424 1789 518
Pre-fixed (d i6 535 -
Financial Bills
Post-fixed (e) 7087451 23593316
Pre-fixed () 56 886 13 644
Securities and Bonds Obligations Abread
Pre-fixed - 369 806
With foreign exchange variance (g) 5821147 2513648
Total 17739264 11252 882

(a) Restatement rate in 2011 DI+035% pa

(b) Restatement rate in 2011 from 87 00% to 95 50% of the DI

(c) Restatement rate in 2011 from 45 00% to 96 50% of the DI

(d) Restatement rate 1n 2011 from 11 86%t0 1235%pa

(e) Restatement rate m 2011 from 100% to 112% DI / from 108% to 109% Selic / from 4 50% to
7 81% + IPCA / from 5 05% to 5.99% + IGPM

(f) Restatement rate 1n 2011 from 1090% to 14 00% p a

{g) Restatement rate .n 2011 275% pa to3 59% p a+ foreign exchange variance
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Securities issued subject to hedge accounting

Hedged items

2011

2010

Cost

Unreahized Cost
amount Fair value (book) gzain/ (loss) amount (book) gawn/ (loss)

Fair
value Unrealized

Securities and Bonds obligations abroad2 837 870 2888 897 (51027)446 862441 371 5491
Total 2 837 870 2888897 (51027)446 862441 371 5491
Hedging Instruments 2011 2010
Cost Market Unreahzed Cost Market Unrealized
Swap — asset position amount value  gain/ (loss) amount value gain/ {loss)
Swiss Franc 501 328 511258 9630 445642 454 112 8 470
Total 501 328 511 258 9930 445 642 454 112 8 470
Future market - buy commitment
DDI 2593 709 -
Total 3 104 967 454 112
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Result from hedging in peniod 2011 2010
Hedged Securities and Bonds obligations abroad (452 262) (13 075)
Hedging derivatives 593 267 13 064
Total 141 005 (an
Subordinated liabilities
2011 2010
Subordmated financial bills
Post-fixed {a) 2 109441 304 964
Bank deposit certificate
Post-fixed (b) 3088122 3262 539
Debentures
Post-fixed - 1 451075
Subordinated notes
With foreign exchange vanance (c) 2 199 747 1 885 684
Total 7 397 310 6 904 262

(a) Restatement rate in 2011 from 1 30% pa to 1 94% pa + CDI or from 109% to 119% of the

CDI/fromé671%pa to770%pa +IGPM/from545%pa t0802%pa +IPCA

(b) Restatement rate in 2011 from 049% pa to167% pa +CDI/722%pa + IGPM / from

792%pa to8§00%pa +IPCA
{¢) Restatement rate (n 2011 738% pa +PTAX

Subordinated liabilities subject to hedge accounting

Hedged items 2011 2010
Cost Fair value Unreahized Cost Fair value Unreahized
amount {book) gain/ (loss) amount (book) gain/ (loss)
Subordinated note 2236 638 2199 7147 36 891 1986 505 1 885 684 100 821
Total 2 236 638 2 199 747 36 891 1 986 505 1 885 684 100 821
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Hedging instruments

Future market - buy commitment
DDI

Total

Result from hedging in period

Hedged subordinated habtlities
Hedging denvatives

Total

Provisions

2011 2010
2841284 2535 390
2841 284 2535390

2011 2010
(472 263) (188 056)

447 783 211 676
(24 480) 23 620

a. Breakdown of the contingent liabilities classified in the probable risk category

Tax contingencies
Civil contingencies
Labor contingencies

Total

(@)
(b
(c)

2011 2010
5307 6413
192 217 23290
139 633 83 988
337 157 113 691

(a) Refer basically to 1ssues involving services tax (1SS) in the amount of R$ 2,461,000, and
social contribution (CSLL) 1n the amount of R$ 1,423

(b) Refer basically to actions claiming compensation of the following types challenging

total number effective cost under contracts, reviewing contractual conditions and

obligations, and rates charged
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C.

(¢) In their great majonty concermng proceedings filed by former employees, the nature of
which mvolves imdemnities, overtime, de-characterization of the workday, job and

representation allowances and others

On account of the stage in which the habifity contingencies are wn, and based on the
Management’s judgment, the final outcome of these actions cannot be determined at this
time, making 1t impossible to determine the expected umeframe for any future cash flow

developments

Changes in contingent liabilities classified in the probable risk category

Tax Ciwvil Labor
proceedings proceedings proceedings
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Beginning balance 6413 12 169 23290 31102 83 988 38058
AccrualsiReversals) (1 749) (6 361) 168927 (7 812) 55645 45930
Write-offs - - - - . -
Actualizations 643 605 - - -
Ending balance 5 307 6413 192217 23290 139 633 83 988
Breakdown of contingent liabilities classified in the possible risk category
2011 2010
Tax contingencies {a} 953 304 400 183
Civil contingencies {b) 16018 37934
Labor contingencies (c) 61 330 2 891
Total 1 030 652 441 008

(a) Basically referring to a) Taxes (IRPJ and CS income tax and social contribution) on
equity equivalence earnings on foreign mvestments amounting to R$ 185,536, b) Taxes
(IRPJ and CS) on contingent COFINS (Social Contribution for Financing of Social
Secunty) and its inflation adjustment in the amount of R$ 381,215, and ¢) social

security charges (INSS) in the amount of R$ 134,542
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(b) Basically actions claiming compensation by challenging total effective cost under
contract or reviewing contractual conditions and obligations, and rates charged

(c) In their great majonty, proceedings filed by former employees, which involves
indemnities, overtume, de-characterization of the working day, job and representation

allowances and others

d. In-court deposits

2011 2010
Tax contingencies 398 412 77384
Civil contingencies - 27 799
Labor contingencies 40272 19 790
Others 57 105 207
Total 495 789 125 180
Current tax liabilities
2011 2010
Taxes and contributions on income payable - 51 785
Taxes and contributions on third party services 5 880 12312
Taxes and contributions on salaries 7 886 6672
Taxes and contributions on financial investments 31348 34 180
PIS (Social Integration Program) 3501 9453
COFINS (Social Contribution for Financing of
Social Secunity) 21 545 7234
ISS (services tax) 5335 8377
IOF (taxes on financial transactions) 21919 -
Other taxes and contributions 1162 15 746
Total 98 576 145 759
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Deferred tax liabilities

a. Breakdown of deferred tax liabilities

Adjustment of financial assets to fair value
Adjustment of derivatives to fair value

Adjustments of loans and receivables to fair value

Derivatives - Cash system
Supervenient depreciation

Total

b. Activity of deferred tax liabilities

Beginning balance

Adjustment of financial assets to fair value
Adjustment of derivatives to fair value

Adjustments of loans and receivables to fair value

Derivatives - Cash system
Supervenient depreciation

Ending balance

Legal obligations

Basically concerns a dispute on non-payment of COFINS (Social Contribution for Financing of
Social Secunty) based on revenues that do not derive from monthly billings (broadening of the

calculation base introduced by Law No 9 718/98)

67

2011 2010

18173 80222
140 150 366

389 793 130323
2709 11833
625917 791 962

1 036 732 1 164 706
2011 2010

1 164 706 753 695
(62 049) 68 986
(150 225) 71115
259 470 (82 457)
(9 124) (31 089)
(166 046) 384 456
1036732 1 164 706
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Other liabilities
2011 2010
Third party funds in transit 122 735 32040
Internal transfers of funds 218 3
Collection of tax and similar revenues - 24292
Foreign exchange sold to be settled 9642 641 385
Obligations due to purchases of foreign exchange 786 635 1252142
Record and settlement cash 11 524 95
Commussion and brokerage fees payable 980 1 408
Outstanding creditors’ settlement account 51733 52778
Transactions with financial assets and commodities to be
- 10 899
settled
Provision for profit sharing 99 555 251 330
Bonuses and profit sharing payable - 19
Provision for personnel expenses 96 732 68 383
Provision for administrative expenses 90 998 69 726
Commussions for intermediation of transactions 15 405 107 102
Credit card transactions 287 103 194 023
Settlement of instruments abroad 1 050 209 935
Credit and leasing transactions to be released 31 364 30657
Others (a) 209 215 192 927
Total 1 814 8895 3139 144

(a) Basically concerns amounts to be processed that derive from the operating flow of the loans
and receivables portfolio

Stockholders’ equity
a. Capital stock
The capital stock of Banco Votorantim 1s represented by 81,538,822,950 shares, which are

fully subscribed and paid up, of which 66,713,582,406 are registered common shares with no
par value and 14,825,240,544 are registered preferred shares with no par value
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Number on December 31, 2011

Number per shareholder
Votorantim Finangas
Banco do Brasil
Others

Percentage per shareholder
Votorantim Finangas
Banco do Brasil
Others

Common

66,713,582,406

Preferred

14,825,240,544

33,356,791,208
33,356,791,198

50 60000001%
49 99999999%
0 00000000%

7,412,620,264
7,412,620,274
6

49 99999555%
50 00000001%
{ 00000004%

(a) According to the strategic partnership established between Banco do Brasil and
Votorantim Finangas, conversion of common shares into preferred shares was effected

involving 7,412,620,267 shares

(b) According to the strategic partnership established between Banco do Brasil and
Votorantim Finangas, Banco do Brasil acquired 7,412,620,277 new preferred shares
issued by BV for the amount of R$ 1,2 bilhon, of which R$750 million was paid
immediately and R$450 milhon was paid in this fiscal year

b. Breakdown of the reserves

Capital reserves

Profit reserves

Legal reserve

Reserve for expansion

Total reserves
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2011 2010

585,104 585,104

1,600,498 3,340,989

421,612 394,583
1,178,886 2,946,406

2,185,602 3,926,093
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Pursuant to the Special Shareholders’ Meeting held on December 22, 2010, allocation was
resolved and approved for the balances of the capital reserves accrued by subventions of tax
incentives and actuahization of equity secunities for the increase of capital, amounting to
R$ 31,945

The Special General Meeting held on December 22, 2011, discussed and approved
compliance with requirements under corporate legisiation n relation to an R$ 1,000,000
capital increase using a "Growth Reserve” without 1ssuing new shares

¢. Reconciliation of Stockholders’ Egquity and Net Income between BR GAAP

(Brazilian Generally Accepted Accounting Practices) and IFRS

2011 2010

Stockholders’ Net  Stockholders’ Net

equity umcome equity income

Balance in BR GAAP 8,041,428 (201,077) 8,388,936 1,015,247

Revenues associated with funding - 93,647 (93,647) 99,946
Assignment of credits with co-habihty,

net of tax effects (920,469) (251,939) (668,530) (368,937)
Provision for losses due 1o impairment,

net of tax effects 169,776 (18.862) 188,638 (89,697)
Impairment of financial assets available

for sale - (81,861) - -

Other adjustments, net of tax effects (59,888) (58,362) {9,434) (9,696)

Balance in IFRS 7,230,847  (518,454) 7,803,963 646,863

Summary of the mamn differences between BR GAAP (BACEN) and IFRS

Revenues associated with funding - In BR GAAP the premium recerved 1n fiscal years
2007 and 2006, 1n a total amount of R$ 500,000, provided for in the deed of the 3™ issue of
debentures of controlled subsidiary BV Leasing, was recorded in Capital Reserve, as
provided i Article 182 Paragraph One - item ¢, of Law No 6 404/76 (legislation that was
effective on the date of 1ssuance of the debentures) In [FRS the premium 1s recognized 1n the
course of the expectation of effectiveness of the funding
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Assignment of credits with co-hability - In the course of 1ts activities, the Conglomerate cames out
transactions that result i the transfer of financial assets to thurd parties However the credit nisks of
such transactions are substantially retaned In BR GAAP the assignment of credit transactions are
booked through recognition of the result at the moment of conduction of the assignment, irrespective

of whether or not the nsk 1s retained

Under 1FRS rules, when financial assets are assigned with substantial retention of risks and
benefits related to the assets assigned, the latter remain on the conglomerate's balance sheet

and an associated hability 1s recogmzed

Impairment of assets available for sale - Under IAS 39, when a decrease n fair value of a
financial asset available for sale has been recogmzed in other comprehensive mcome and
there 15 objective evidence that the asset may be impaired, the cumulative loss that has been
recognized 1n other comprehensive income 1s reclassified from shareholders' equity to the

result as a reclassification adjustment, even 1f the financial asset has not been derecogmzed

Certain nvestments in shares of non-public comparies that were classified as available for

sale had a negative fair value adjustment for more than one reporting period

Provision for losses due to tmpairment - In BR GAAP the provision for doubtful accounts
18 measured considening an analysis of the risks related to the realization of the credits, in an
amount considered sufficient to cover any losses following the rules established by the
BACEN (Central Bank) According to these rules, the provisions are accrued as from the
granting of the credit, based on the classification of credit risk, on account of the periodic
analysis of the quality of the client and of the sectors of activity, and not only upon
occurrence of default In BR GAAP, the provision cannot be less than the mimmum required
by the rules of the regulator, but an additional provision can be recognized when the
minimum provision 1s constdered insufficient 1AS 39 determines that the entity should
assess on each base date whether there 15 objective evidence that the credit transaction or a
group of credit transactions 1s 1n a situation of loss due to imparment A credit transaction or
a group of credit transactions 1s 1n a situation of loss due to impairment 1f there 13 objective
evidence of reduction due to impairment as a consequence of one or more events that
occurred after the 1mitial recognition of the credit transaction (event of loss) and such event or

events have an impact on the future cash flow and can be estimated reliably
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d. Dividends

Shareholders are assured a mimmum mandatory dividend corresponding to 25% of each
period's income net of the legal reserve On December 31, 2010, Management proposed

payment of dividends on the period's income

Net income by BR GAAP
Legal reserve

Calculation base

Interest on equity
Dividends payable

Amount proposed

% of calculation base

2010

1,015,247
(50,762)

964,485

241,121

241,121

25%

In the year ended December 31, 2011, dividends were proposed in the amount of R$ 128,389,
calculated on net income for the first half of 2011 amounting to R3 540,585

e. Adjustments of book value recognized in stockholders’ equity

Beginning balance

Financial assets available for sale
Financial institutions
Non-financial institutions

Derivatives - Cash Flow Hedge

Tax effects

Ending balance

2011 2010
(53,384) (81,990)
19,367 24,900
109,903 -
(5,005) -
(52,486) 3,706
18,395 (53,384)
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Interest revenues

Advances to depositors

Loans

Discounted trade bills

Financing

Export financing

Financing n foreign currency

Rural financing

Real estate financing

Rights from loans of shares

Foreign exchange transactions

Leasing

Credits for corporate/personal guarantees and other guarantees
Investments 1n committed transactions

Investments in interbank deposits

Investments In foreign currencies

Assigned credits

Benefits from using rights of shares in non-public companies
Others

Total
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2011 2010
127 26
2,859,719 2,083,807
10,272 4,904
7,049,297 5,190,275
551,134 291,534
24,563 (25412)
109,876 75,468
22,669 176
6 10,863
68,833 5,238
657,382 690,980
78 30
1,725,267 1,388,481
111,303 112,835
38,878 5,782
2,470,686 950,885
44,298 -
823,613 334,511
16,568,001 11,120,383
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Interest expenses

Commuited transactions

Expenses with assignees

Interbank deposits

Term deposits

Loans in Brazil

Loans abroad

National Treasury onlendings

BNDES (National Economic and Social Development Bank) onlendings
FINAME (Government Financing for Machmery and Equipment) onlendings
Obhgatiens to bankers abroad

Debentures

Funds of Real Estate Credit Bills

Funds of Agribusiness Credit Bills

Finangial Balls

Opuons box - fixed income strategy

Securities and Bonds obligations abroad

Others

Total

Revenues from services and commission fees

Banking fees

Valuation and revaluation of assets received as collateral
Admnstration of investment funds

Collection revenues

Commissions from placement of securnitics

Brokerage fees from stock exchange transactions
Revenues from guarantees pledged

Credit card transactions

Insurance brokerage fees

Financial advisory

Remmbursement of fees for mmtermediation of transacuions
Reimbursement of other costs

Others

Total
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2011 2010
(4,006,056) (3,180,669)
(1,382,693) (709,507)

(183,358) (75.647)
(2,841,357) (2.483,528)
(1,317) (2,924)
(409,445) 171,282
(6,522) (1,499)
(257,262) (253.905)
(152,752) (115,996)
(84,127) (4,404)
(600 870) (588.757)
(370) (3,462)
(165,135) (146,748)
(765,578) (113,574)
(218,586) (287,052)
(1,541,536) (95,841)
(32,120) (31,831)
(12,649,084) (7.924.062)
2011 2010
559 828 777,823
220275 167,800
125,942 109,819
11,189 6,030
62,031 77,543
34,341 30,092
140,829 144,032
19275 13,055
- 42,279
41983 19,925
365,930 1,403,430
45,469 639,212
110,572 4,030
1,737,664 3.435,070
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Expenses from services and commission fees

2011 2010
Financial system services (195,507) (181,612)
Specialized technical services (567,501) (572,427
Credit card transactions (14,072) (10,478)
Commussions from mtermediation of transactions (1,428,243) {2,052,652)
Associated costs (127,868) (386,586)
Others (206,366) (134,365)
Total (2,539,557 (3,338,120)
Result of financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
2011 2010
Financial assets 3.057,7i5 2.570,285
Financial liabihities (98,205) (1,627)
Loans and receivables 487,344 (139,104}
Total 3 446 854 2,429,554
Result from derivative financial instruments
011 2010
Swap contracts (62,188) (497.,254)
Term contracts 2,521 (8,248)
Forward contracts {1,408,274) (767.434)
Option contracts 26,286 (28.025)
NDF (non-delhiverable forwards) contracts 18,556 (18,673)
Credit denvatives 40,605 18,691
Others 54,027 {1,885)
Total (1 328 467) {1,302,828)
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Result of losses due to impairment

(Accrual) / reversals of provision for losses
Recovery of credits written off to loss
Discounts granted for renegotiation

Totai

Personnel expenses

Professional fees
Benefits

Welfare charges
Earnings
Tramming

Total

Other administrative expenses

Water, electricity and gas

Rent

Leasing of assets
Communications

Charitable contributions
Maintenance and preservation of assets
Matenals

Data processing

Promotions and public relations
Advertising and publicity
Publications

76

2011 2010
(3,.922,807)  (1,347,474)
188,232 192,743
(288,912) (274,066)
(4,023,487)  (1,428,797)
2011 2010
(26,662) (27,060)
(139,447) (118,362)
(184,422) (161,117)
(503,191) (462,183)
(4.,928) (6,002)
(858,650) (774,724
2011 2010
(5,204) (5,041)
(133,605) (110,142)
(4,353) (4,821)
(101,454) (102,374)
(2,683) (7.461)
(17,183) (13,967)
(4,632) (6,561)
(152,250) (118,137)
(16,222) (22,779)
(10,211) (33,841)
(1,000 (1,797)
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[nsurance

Financial system services

Third party services

Vigilance and secunty
Transportation

Travel

Court and notary public service fees
Specialized technical services
Others

Total

Depreciation and amortization expenses

Amortization
Depreciation

Total

Tax expenses

ISS (services tax)

PIS (Social Integration Program)

COFINS (Social Contribution for Financing of Social Secunty)
Others

Total
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(12,161) (17,747)
(692) (1,038)
(17,274) (20,840)
(5.604) (3,990)
(24,151) (21,507)
(34.821) (35,968)

- {664)

@7 -
(14,021) (17,694)
(557,548) (546,369)
2011 2010
(16,736) (13,534)
(20,466) (14,898)
(37,202) (28,432)
2011 2010
(65,963) (62,882)
(54,262) (48,687)
(314,698) (300,436)
(145,345) (107,300)
(580,268) (519,305)
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Result from sale of non-current assets held for sale

2011 2010
Sale of assets (105 282) (119,486)
Sale of investments 84 116
Total {105 198) (119,370)
Other operating expenses
2011 2010
Provision for contingent habilities {307,960} (38,850}
Monetary restatement of habihities - 30,662
Others {249 615) (198.758)
Total (557 575) (206,946)
Income tax and contribution expenses
a. Charges payable on the operations
2011 2010
Income before income tax and social contribution of the participations (1,251,431) 1,101,965
Charges at the effective nominal rate 500,573 (440,786)
Exclusions/(additiens) (620,507) 175 161
IR {income tax) tax loss (22,680) (329,867}
CS (social contribution) negative base 19,113 16,311
Adjustment to fair value of financial assets (130,938) 119,538
Adjustment to fair value of derivatives (253,240) (20,598)
Adjustment to fair value of loans and receivables 259,469 (28,480}
Profit sharing 74,064 39,539
Provision for losses due to impawrment (867.217) (106,035)
Provisions (91,043) (15,620}
Denvatives - Cash system (7,525) (16,153}
Superventent/Insufficient depreciation 102,204 384,456
Result of branches abroad (43,943) (23,686)
Non-taxable interest on financial assets - 103,627
Permanent additions and tax incentives 261,988 -
Others 79,243 52 129
Current income taxes and contributions (119,934} (265,625)
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b. Deferred income tax with effects on result
Deferred tax assets

Additions/(exclusions)
IR (income tax) tax loss
CS (Social Contnbution) negative base
Adjustment to fair value of financial assets
Adjustment to fair value of denvatives
Profit sharing
Provision for losses due to impairment
Provisions
Derivatives - Cash system
Insufficient depreciation
Others

Total

Deferred tax habilities

Additions/(exclusions)
Adjustment to fair value of financial assets
Adjustment to fair value of derivatives
Adjustment to fair value of loans and receivables
Derivatives - Cash system
Supervement/Insufficient depreciation

Total

43  Related parties
a. Summary of transactions with related parties

The balances of the asset, hability, revenue
non-consohdated related parties are the following
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2011 2010
50,146 329,867
(2,634) (16,311)
53.803 (31,010)
103,016 806
- (114)
867217 126,098
91,043 15,620
(1,600) (14,936)
(268,250) -
4,799 3,111
897,540 413,131
2011 2010
76,364 (45,164)
150,224 (71,115)
(259,470) 82,457
9,124 31,089
166,045 (384,456)
142,287 (387,189
and expense transactions Involving
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Assefs

Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets

Loans and receivables
Detivative financial instruments
Other assets

Liabihties

Deposits

Financial habilities at amortized
cost

Liabilities related to assigned
assets

Securities 1ssued

Loans and onlendings
Derivative financial instruments
Other Liabilittes

Revenues

Interest revenue

Result of financial instruments at
fair value

Derivative financia! instruments

Expenses

Interest expense

Result of financial instruments at
far value

Dertvative financial instruments
Other operating expenses

Banco do Brasil {a) Votorantim (b) Subsidiaries
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
854,187 22539 - - 39,817,150 32,788,286
- - - 900 20,299,006 16,883,132
- - (9.384) - - -
481,643 707,429 9,656 20 532,630 430,348
- 1,167,350 . - 379 165
267,408 203,915 228,404 84,566 333,247 15,195
72,131 269,865 307,281 876,325 - 1,542,647
16,514,998 10,096,800 - - . -
- 278,048 - - . -
1,547,155 - - - - -
1,064,760 2,808,640 1,755,141 61,125 21,397,652 17,647,433
- 1,231 566 - 64,297 508 -
432,627 53,857 2811 64 12 5,385
262,514 - - - 195,482 -
5,197 15,200 - 565,971 6,657,207 3,605,107
179,485 43,390 91,201 191,964 (6,786,446) {134,508)
- - (39) - - -
- 52,529 - 169,014 - (1,543,527)
- 30 - - (11,114) (3.480)

(a) Banco do Brasil - Comprise the compantes that make up the Banco do Brasil Financial
Conglomerate, of which Banco do Brasil S A s the principal one

(b) Votorantim - Comprise the compames that make up the Votoranttm Industrial
Conglomerate, of which the principal ones are Votorantim Finangas S A and Votorantim

Industnal S A

Remuneration of key Management personnel

The Votorantim Conglomerate disbursed the following amounts on account of remuneration
for 1ts key Management personnel
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2011 2010

Professional fees 26,662 27,060
Bonuses 55,568 74,654
Welfare charges 25,080 31.023
Total 107,310 132,737

Operating segments

An operating segment i1s a component of the Conglomerate that conducts business activities from
which 1t can obtain revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses related to
transactions with other components of the Conglomerate

The result of the segments include 1tems that are directly attributable to each segment, as well as
those that can be allocated on reasonable bases Non-allocated items comprise mainly corporate
assets, head-office expenses and income tax and social contribution assets and habilities

The Conglomerate has two segments that are subject to disclosure, as described below, which are
the strategic business units of the Conglomerate The strategic business units of the Conglomerate
offer different products and services and are managed separately, as they require different
technologies and marketing strategies The following summary describes the operations 1n each
one of the reportable segments of the Conglomerate

e Retall - Transactions with charactenistics of granting of credit aimed at the retail segment
such as, for example, personal credit and financing of vehicles,

o  Wholesale - Transactions with characteristics of granting of credit and structured
transactions aumed at the non-retail segment,

¢ Others - Includes transactions related to the management of third party funds, transactions
related to brokerage of stock, instruments, bonds, commedities and other non-relevant
transactions that cannot be allocated on reasonable bases

Information relative to the result of each reportable segment 1s included below The performance
15 assessed based on the income of the segment before income tax and social contribution
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2011
In R$ Milhons Retail Wholesale
Financial Revenues and Expenses 4,269 1,209
Provision for losses due to impairment 3,255 417
Admnstrative and personnel expenses 872 529
Tax expenses 469 185

Risk management

Risk management has policies that adhere to best market practices and are n line with the
guidelines defined by the National Monetary Council (“CMN™) Its scope 1s within the ambit of
the institutions that make up the Votorantim Financial Conglomerate

Policies, procedures and management systems have been implemented that are capable of
managing, assessing and mitigating the rnisks nherent to 1ts businesses, providing the
Management with a vision of all the risks

A Risk Management Commuttee has been created and subordinated to 1t are three commuissions,
one aimed at the management of market risk, another to act as a manager of credit rnisk and a thard
one focused on the management of operating risk

The Assets and Liabilities Management Commuttee (“ALM™) has the responsibility of conducting
strategic management of capital and of the balance sheet The monitoring of the liqudity nisk 1s
conducted by a specific Commission, which 1s subordinate to this Commuttee

a. Market risk

Market nsk 1s defined as being the possibility of occurrence of losses resulting from
fluctuation of the market values of the positions held Management 1s conducted in a
centralized form by an area that maintains independence in relation to the operations desk

The basic procedures adopted for management of this nsk are (a) integrity in the price of
assets and derivatives, (b) nsk assessment by the Value at Risk methodology and through
simulation of scenarios, and (¢) monitoring of daily results with tests of adhesion to the
methodology (back-test)
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The Conglomerate carries out transactions that mvolve denivative financial instruments,
acting n the orgamzed and over-the-counter markets, with the purpose of enabling risk
market management that 15 adequate for its policy These mstruments are used for the
hedging of positions, in order to meet the demand of counterparties and as a means of

reversal of positions 1n moments of major fluctuations

b. Operating risk

Operating risk 1s defined as the possibility of occurrence of losses resulting from the failure,
deficiency or inadequacy of mternal processes, people and systems, or of external events It
also ncludes the legal risk associated with the mnadequacy or deficiency in agreements
executed by the institution, as well as sanctions due to failure to comply with legal provisions

and indemnities for damages to third parties denving from the activities carmed out

The management process begins with the applicatien of propretary methodology for the
mapping of risks The stages of the management are the identification, assessment,

monitoring, control and mitigation of the risks, communication and an action plan

The combination of the actions of mapping and monttoring the nisks with the information
obtained from the records of the losses incurred enables continual improvement n the

policies and procedures adopted, as well as the reduction of the existing nsks

In addition, 1t 1s mandatory to record on the database system of operating losses and of
operating nsk management the events occurred 1n the institutions This procedure has the
primary purpose of developing a database to be used for the calculauon of allocation of
capital to cover the operating risk, as provided 1n the Basel II agreement, but gives rise to the

supply of information that 1s sufficient for identification of the causes of such risks

¢. Credit risk

Credit nisk consists of the possibility of occurrence of losses associated with non-
performance by the borrower or the counterparty of its relevant financial obligations on the
covenanted terms, as well as devaluation of the credit agreement deriving from detenioration
of the nisk classification of the borrower, as well as from the reduction of gains or

remuneration, from benefits granted in the renegotiation and from costs for recovery
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As part of the process of credit risk management, momitoring of the policies, rules for
processes and established limits 15 conducted, as well as analysis of the risks and submission
to the levels of authority and to the approving committees The credit policy 1s developed
based on analysis of the internal indicators of the portfolio and of the processes of pricing and
assessment of companies, and on external factors, related to the financial condition of the

companies and to the economic environment 1n the country and abroad

The Conglomerate conducts assessments of the credit nisk of the operations, determined by
using judgmental and statistical models 1t 1s stressed that (n the 1dentification of deterioration
of the quality of the credit portfohio, nsk mitigation actions are taken, such as reassessment of
the risk profile of the clients and sectors analyses that influence the management of hmits up

to the management and control of guarantees
The credit cycle consists of the following stages

1- Credit Proposal

2- Assessment of the Credit Risk
3- Granting of the Credit

4- Origination of the Transaction
5- Monitonng

6- Collection of the Transaction
7- Recovery

The Executive Board has delegated the responsibility for credit risk management to the

Credit Department, which 1s responsible for supervision of the credit risk, including

e Formulation of credit policies together with the business umts, wncluding the
requirements of guarantees, assessment of credit, classification of nisk and presentation
of reports, legal and documental procedures, as well as compliance with normative and

statutory requirements

s Estabhishment of the structure of hmits of authonty for approval and renewal of credit
facilities The Limuts of authonty are defined for the Credit Executive Officers of the
business umts Significant credit facilities must be approved by the Credit Area, the
Credit Executive Officer, and the Credit Committee or by the Executive Board -

whichever 1s most appropnate
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¢ Rewvision and assessment of the credit risk The Credit Area assesses all of the credit
exposure 1n excess of the estabhished lmits, before the credit facihities are released to the
chents by the business umt 1n question The renewals and revisions of credit facihities are
subject to the same revision process

e Limtation of concentration of exposure by counterparties, geographical areas and
industnial sectors, ranges of credit classification, market hiquidity and country

e Development and maintenance of the risk classification of the Bank 1n order to classify
the exposures according to the level of nisk of financial loss faced and focus the
management on the inherent risks

e Offering counseling, orientation and specialized techmques to the business umts to
promote the best practices by the entire Group in the management of credit risk

The book value of the financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure The
maximum credit exposure on the date of the financial statements was

2011 2010

Financial assets 42,947,346 37,453,397
Cash and cash equivalents 5,594,904 1,499,981
Financial assets with agreement of resale 9,618 225 12,256,373
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 10,011,804 13,111,360
Financial assets available for sale 16,045 469 8,796,258
Derivatives financial instruments 1,676,944 1,789,425
Loans and recervables 79,800,831 70,629,261
Loans and receivables - {a) 79,800,831 70,629,261
OfT Balance 11,858,993 10,252,394
Corporate guarantees and other guarantees 11,838,994 10,010,949
Comfort letter 19,999 241,445
Total 134,607,170 118,335 052

(a) - Conglomerate pelicy 15 to use loans and receyvables for credit risk exposure purposes,
see note 8a
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Maximum exposure to credit risk for financial assets on the date of the financial statements,
by counterparty geographic region

2011 2010
Domestuc 40,316,764 33,025,814
Abroad 2 630 582 4,427,583
Total 42 947 346 37,453,397

Maximum exposure to credit nsk for financial assets on the date of the financial statements,
broken down by counterparty

2011 2010
Public 16,722,265 14,092,051
Private 26 225,081 23,361.346
Total 42,947,346 37,453,397

Stream of maturities of part-payments of financial assets on the date of the financial

statements
2011 2010

Up to 90 days 21,886,799 6,065,659
91 - 360 days 2,726,025 15,934,517

| -3 years 5,962,882 4,556,143
3-5years 6,478 959 4,113,066
Over 5 years 5 892,681 6,784,012
Total 42,947,346 37,453,397

Maximum exposure to credit risk for loans and receivables as of the financial statements
date, by counterparty geographic region

2011 2010
Domestic 79,800,831 70,581,950
United States - 28271
Denmark - 18,365
Others -
Total 79,800,831 70,629,261
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Maximum exposure to credit risk for loans and receivables as of the date of the financial

statermnents by business segment

Retail customers
Wholesale customers

Total

2011 2010
58,980,102 50,930,455
20,820,729 19,698,802
79,800,831 70,629,261

Maximum exposure to credit nisk for loans and receivables on the date of the financial

statements, by risk concentration

Top ten debtors

Top fifty debtors
Top hundred debtors
Other clients

Total

Maximum exposure to credit risk for loans and recervables on the date of financial
statements, by sector of economic activity

Legal entities
State public sector
Services
Private sector

Industry
Commerce
Rural
Services

Individuals

Total
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2011 2010
3,018,213 3,129,462
4,266,170 4,570,739
3,458,730 3,625,949

69,057,718 59,303,111
79,800,831 70,629,261
2011 2010
21,971,937 20,174,947
53,417 77,018
53,417 77,018
21,918,520 20,097,929
10,535,227 9,641,526
3,995,092 3,283,583
877,330 1,313,368
6,510,871 5,859,452
57,828,894 50,454,314
79,800,831 70,629,261
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The flow of maturity of the installments of the loans and receivables portfolio with
characteristics of granting of credst, granted on the date of the financial statements, was

2011 2010

Overdue installments
As of 15 days 1,974,370 826,384

Installments due

Up to 90 days 13,415,668 14,554,872
From 91 to 360 days 22,121,653 18,244,766
From | to 3 years 32,749,900 29,991,385
From 3 to 5 years 7,303,112 6,867,665
Over 5 years 2,236,128 144,189
Total 79,800,831 70,629,261

The Bank holds guarantees for loans and receivables with characteristics of granting of credit
in the form of mortgages on properties, securities and other guarantees The table below

shows the amount of these guarantees

2011 2010

Corporate guarantees and other guaraniees 17,719,650 16,936,872
Securities 7,211,957 4,572,043
Machinery and equipment 1,533,353 1,733,717
Mortgages 644,707 694,482
Others 4,415,365 2,728,942
Total 31,525,032 26,666,056

Provision for impairment losses by individually sigmficant transaction and mass-oriented

transactions portfolio
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2011 2010
Individual significant transactions 336,539 213,786
Mass-oriented transactions 31,365,732 838,396
Total 3,702,271 1,052,182

The activity and the provision for losses due to impairment in relation to the loans and

receirvables with charactenistics of granting of credit were

2011 2010
Beginning balance 1,052,182 1,044,932
Accrual/(reversals) 3,922 807 1,347,474
Write-offs to loss {1,289,886) (1,397,611)
Others 17,168 57,387
Ending balance 3,702,271 1,052,182

Based on historical default rates, no additional proviston for impairment 1s required for the
loans and receivables portfoho's solvent or delinquent customers with repayments 1n arrears
of up to 90 days As of December 31, 2011, these contracts accounted for 92 91% (94 8%

2010) of the total portfolio

During 2011 the Conglomerate renegotiated R$ 9,981,306 (R$ 8,906,615 in 2010) of loans
and receivables with charactenistics of granting of credit This amount considers renegotiation
of performing and non-performing agreements In the same period the Conglomerate

recovered R$ 188,232 (R$ 192,743 in 2010) that had been written off to loss
d. Management of capital

Allocation of capual

The allocation of capital among the operations and specific activities 1s, in 1ts majority, driven

by the optimization of return on allocated capital
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The amount of capital allocated to each operation or activity 1s mainly based on the regulating
capital, but in certain cases the regulating norms do not completely reflect the level of vanance
of nsk associated with the different activities In these cases, the capital requirements can be
adapted to reflect the different risk profiles, subject to the general level of capital to sustain a
specific operation or actwvity that does not fall below the mimimum required for regulating

purposes

The process of allocation of capital to specific operations and activities 15 conducted
independently of the persons responsible for the operation and 1s subject to analysis by the

Assets and Liabilities Management Comtnittee

Although the maximization of the return on capital adjusted for risk 1s the main base used to
determine how capital 1s allocated within the Bank for specific operations or activities, 1t 1s not
the only base used for taking decisions Synergies with other operations and activities,
availability of management and other resources and the adequacy of the activity for the long-
term strategic objectives of the Bank also are other factors taken into consideration The
policies of the Bank 1n refation to management and allocation of capital are analyzed regularly

by the Executive Board

Regulatory capital

The Central Bank of Brazil 1s the regulating agency that establishes and monitors the capital

norms for the Bank as a whole

In relation to implementation of the current capital norms, the Central Bank of Brazil requires
the Conglomerate to mamntain an established proportion of the total capital in relation to the
weighted total of the risk assets The Bank calculates the needs for market risk 1n its tradable
portfolios based on the VaR models adopted and uses 1ts internal classifications as a base to

weight the credit nisk

The regulating capital of the group 1s analyzed at two levels

e Level 1 Capital, which basicaily mcludes the capital of common and preferred shares,

accumulated profits and capital and profit reserves

¢ Level 2 Capital, which basically includes subordinated habilities
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The policy of the Bank seeks to maintain a solid capital base to retain the confidence of the
investor, of the creditor or of the market, and to sustain future development of the business
The impact of the level of capital on the shareholder’s return 1s also recogmzed and the Bank
recognizes the need to maintain equilibrium between the higher returns that may be possible
with more leveraging and the benefits and security provided by a solid capital position

The Bank and its individually-regulated operations have complied with all capital
requirements imposed externally during the period

There were no significant changes i1n the capital management of the Bank during the period
The position of the regulating capital of the Conglomerate on December 31, 2011 and 20t01s

shown below

Basel Index calculated based on the equity peosition prepared using the accounting
guidelines emanated from the Corporations Law and the norms and instructions of the

CMN (National Monetary Council)

Total Referential Equity (PR)

Leve! 1 Referential Equity
Level 11 Referential Equity

Required Referential Equity (PRE)

Credit risk
Market risk
Operational nisk

Excess Referential Equity

Index (PR x 100)/(PRE/0 11)

Situational limit for immobilization
Margin or shortfall

Limat for immobilization

2011 2010
12,054,180 11,844,719
8,086,351 8,405,405
3,967,829 3,439,314
9,385,719 9,945,507
8,923,692 8,759,342
193,114 769,232
268,913 416,933
2,668,461 1,899,212
14 1% 13 1%
2011 2010
213,741 5,922,359
5.813,348 166,244
5,813,348 5,756,115
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e. Liquidity risk

f

Liquidity risk 1s the nisk of the Bank facing difficulties to perform obligations associated with
financial liabilities that are settled with spot cash payments or with other financial assets The
Bank’s approach to the management of liquidity 1s of ensuring to the maximum extent
possible that tt can perform 1ts obligations as each one matures, under both normal and
stressful conditions, without causing unacceptable losses or incurring the risk of jeopardizing
the reputation of the Conglomerate

The cash flow is prepared by the risk area to monitor the current financial position of the
Bank, and 1s sent to the executive officer responsible Regular daily stress tests are conducted
with a variety of scenarios 1n normal and more severe market conditions The contingency
plan considers the strategies and procedures that are necessary to at least conduct the
equilibrium of 1ts capability of payment, taking into account the potential imbalances
identified in the stress tests and in the various scenarios

Management of assets and liabilities

The Assets and Liabilites Management Committee (ALM) s responsible for the
management of the structural risks of the interest, foreign exchange and liquidity rates, as
well as management of the capital that seeks to optimize the nisk versus return ratio and more
efficiency 1n the composition of the factors that can impact the Solvabihty Index (Basel)

The contractual maturnities of assets and hiabilities are shown below

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets with agreement of resale
Financizl assets ax far vatue through profit or
loss
Financial assets available for sale
Denvative financial instruments
Loans and recen ables

Total

Liabihities
Financial habilites at fair value through
profit or loss
Financial habilines at amortized cost
Financial liabilihes associated with
transferred assets
Financial institution deposits

2011

Upto  From?%t to Fram | From 3 Over
90 days 360 days to 3 years 105 years 5 years Total
5594 904 - - - 5594 904
8998 430 619 795 - - 9618,225
4016503 1 138 598 24386 184 1 558621 811898 10011 804
3006 885 18] 522 3,202 330 4 659018 4995714 16 045 469
270078 786 110 274 368 261 320 85,068 1 676 944
21.296.208 22023 238 31568 876 7,117 533 2 142 773 86 148,678
43 183 008 24,749,313 39 531 758 13 566 492 8035453 129 096,024
11 843 - 100 332 11331 123 706
14,264 319 16717 088 4091 613 191 711 102 037 35,366 768
8139340 5108 308 8270 791 1 958 893 7,641 23,484 973
821 803 802 329 612 149 15513 604,409 2 856 203
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2011
Upte From9lto From 1 From 3 Over
90 days 360 days to 3 years to § years % years 1 otal
Assets
Chient deposits 4,556,105 13453414 4635533 108 467 14 917 22 768 436
Loans and onlendings 1 BI3 798 3493210 4,780,924 692 817 697613 11478 362
Securities 1ssued 179617 4 652,744 8,765 520 3760 147 81236 17 739,264
Demanve financial instruments 330 GO8 648 857 193 115 185616 124 408 1 482 004
Subordinated habilines - 1 136,579 2002476 445759 381249% 7397310
Total 30116 833 46.312 529 33452453 7 370454 5444 757 122 697 026
1010
Upto From 91 to From 1 From 3 Over
90 days 360 days 10 3 years to 5 vears 5 years Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1499981 - - - - 1499 981
Financial asscts with agreement of resale 12 256 373 - - . - 12,256 373
T:s“c‘“l assets at fur value through profit or 2115475 2632129 3656670 2299151 2408235 13 111360
Financial assets available for sale 2049045 611988 286,046 1782082 4067 097 8796238
Demative financial instruments 526 339 434 027 438 546 31,833 308,680 1789425
Loans and recenables 23,440 685 18,351,955 29,951 385 6 867 665 144 188 78,795,878
Total 43 887 589 22 030 099 34 422 647 10 980 731 6928 200 116 249275
——— ——
Liabthties
Financial Labilities at fair value through 092 219 1,563 591 53252 1362 13 553 2623977
profit or loss
Financial liabihities at amomzed cost 11028 262 18 043 696 4,834 359 92124 - 33698 441
Financial habilites associated with
transferred assets 5451 843 3 246,686 6245 845 379 368 13002 15,336,744
Financial institution deposits 304 094 338993 75 196 6 860 1123 726 266
Chient deposits 5384 904 12 324 664 5126 658 26,165 91299 22 871 690
Loans and onlendings 1727 396 461003 4227282 648 853 40,515 11254 480
Secunnies issued 767 322 3436 904 5434 742 1,121,741 492 173 11252 882
Denatn e financtal instruments 358278 741 668 609 892 109 237 75 546 1894 621
Subordmnated hiabihties - i 451075 1,610 252 1,551,465 2291470 6 904,262
Taotal 26014 318 45,737 1 28217478 3937175 2 937 081 106,863 363

The assets and lLiabilittes with an indefinite term, for the purposes of segregation n the
balance sheet, are classified showing the asset transactions as “over 5 years” and the habilhity
transactions as “up to 90 days” Stockholders’ equity has no defined term and 1s being shown
as “over 5 years”
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On December 31, 2011 the profile of the interest-bearing financial instruments of the

Conglomerate was

Instruments with prefixed rate 58,282,793
Financial assets 84,606,165
Financial liabilities (26,323,373)

Instruments with post-fixed rate (57,241,880)
Financial assets 37.218,010
Fmancial habilities (94,459,890)

On December 31, 2011 and 2010, the portfolio of credit commitments by corporate/petsonal

guarantees and other guarantees, recorded in memorandum accounts, was

2011 2010
Corporate guarantees and other guarantees 11,838,994 10,010,949
Comfort letters 19,999 241,445

The profile of the dervative financial nstruments segregated by place of trading in the

relevant base dates were

Asset position 2m 2010
Transactions 1n stock exchanges 517,136 441,016
Over-the-counter 1,159,808 1,348,409
Financial institutions 909,473 1,307,537
Clients 250,335 40,872
Total 1,676,944 1,789,425
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Liability position 2011 2010
Transactions in stock exchanges 546,213 637,407
Over-the-counter 935,791 1,257,214
Financial institutions 864,600 1,063,416
Clients 71,191 193,798
Total 1,482,004 1,894,621

The financial assets pledged 1n guarantee for Stock Exchange transactions, clearing houses,

among others, are

2011 2010

Transactions in stock exchange 2,015,730 1,815,813
National Treasury Notes 256,790 1,811,045
Financial Treasury Bills 21,920 4,768
Federal Treasury Bills 1,737,020 -
Clearing house transactions 61,463 71,383
National Treasury Notes 6,652 26,081
Financial Treasury Bills - 24,288
Federal Treasury Bills 54,811 21,014
Others 1,774,907 2,951,207
National Treasury Notes 410,859 84,286
Financial Treasury Bills 21,820 12,985
Others (a) 1,342,228 2,853,936
Total 3,852,100 4,838,403

(&) In 2011 basically concerming instruments of foreign governments, amounting to
R$ 1,332,557 (R$ 1,546,455 n 2010), and other instruments abroad, amounting to

RS 9,671 (R$ 1,307,481 1in 2010)

95




Banco Votorantim S.A.

Explanatory notes to the consolidated financial statements

(in thousands of Brazilian Reais)

The Conglomerate’s exposure to foreign currency risk was the following:

96

2011
Local Fereign
currency CUITrency Total
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents 5,369,745 225,159 5,594,904
Financial assets with agreement for resale 9,173,337 444,888 9,618,225
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 8,453,047 1 558,757 10,011,804
Financial assets available for sale 16,045,469 - 16,045,469
Dernvative financtal instruments 1,676,944 - 1,676,944
Loans and recervables 79.981,204 6,167,474 86,148,678
Total 120,699 746 8 396,278 129,096,024
Liabthities
Financial habilities at fair value through profit or loss 123 706 - 123,706
Financial hatihities at amortized cost 35,366,768 - 35,366,768
Financial habihties associated with transferred assets 23,484 973 - 23,484,973
Fmancial institution deposits 2,753,460 102,743 2,856,203
Client deposits 22,055,819 712,617 22,768,436
Loans and onlendings 10045,723 1,432,639 11,478,362
Securities 1ssued 7,469,412 10,269,852 17,739,264
Dernvative financial instruments 1,482,004 - 1,482,004
Subordinated liabilities 4,728,358 2,668,952 7,397,310
Other habilities 955,456 859,433 1.814 889
Total 108,465.67% 16,046,236 124 511,915
Derivative finaneial instruments
Foreign currency asset position 9.470,174
Foreign currency hability position 1,910,368
Currency exchange exposure 90,152
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2010
Local Foreign
currency currency Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,499,981 - 1,499,981
Fiancial assets with agreement for resale 11 757,466 498 907 12,256,373
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 10,500,821 2,610,539 13,111,360
Financial assets available for sale 8,796,258 - 8,796,258
Denvative financial instruments 1 789,425 - 1,789,425
Loans and receivables 74,756,007 4,039,871 78,795,878
Other assets 1 606,317 4,132 1,610,449
Total 110,706 275 7 153.449 117,859,724
Laabihties

Financial habilities at fair value through profit or loss 2,623,977 - 2,623,977
Financial hiabilities at amortzed cost 33,998,441 - 33,998,441
Financial habilities associated with transferred assets 15.336,744 - 15,336,744
Financial mstitution deposits 711918 14,348 726,266
Client deposits 22,193,123 678,567 22,871,690
L.oans and onlendings 10,042,906 1,211,574 11,254,480
Securnities 1ssued 618,884 10,633,998 11,252,882
Derivative financial instruments 1,894,621 - 1,894,621
Subordinated hablities 6 904,262 - 6,904,262
Other liabilities 2.694,796 444,348 3139 144
Total 97 019,672 12,982,835 110,002,507

Derivative financial instruments

Foreign currency asset position 7,993 200
Foreign currency hability position 2236,072
Currency exchange exposure (72.258!

The tables below show a summary of the results for the Trading Portfolio, consisting of
government and private instruments, derivative financial instruments and funding obtained
through committed transactions, presenting the amounts observed on each base date

m  Scenario | - Consists of the probable scenario for the nisk factors and 1s based on the
referential information by the BM&F BOVESPA and ANBIMA (Brazihan Financial and
Capital Markets Association) on the market used

v Scenario 2 - Scenario with a 25% shock on the probable market scenario, provided by the
Market Risk Department, according to an mternal norm for pricing of assets and
economic analysis, which ts consistent with best market practices
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Scenario 3 - Scenario with a 50% shock on the probable market scenario, provided by the
Market Risk Department, according to an internal norm for the pricing of assets and

economic analysis, which 1s consistent with best market practices

2011
Scenano |
Rates
Rusk factor Concept variance Result
Prefixed rate Risk of variance of the prefixed interest rates Reduction 33,363
Maintenance
Risk of vanance of foreign exchange coupons -
Foreign currency coupons
Foreign exchange variance Risk of vanance of the foreign exchange rates Increase 2,791
Price indices Risk of varance of price indices coupons increase 260
TR/TBF (Referential Maintenance
Rate/Basic Financial Rate) Risk of vanance of TR and TBF coupons -
Others Risk of vanance of other coupons Reduction (975)
2011
Scenarto 11
Rates
Risk factor Concept variance Result
Prefixed rate Risk of variance of the prefixed mterest rates Increase (75,889;
Foreign currency coupons Risk of variance of foreign exchange coupons Increase (1,845;
Foreign exchange vanance Risk of vanance of the foreign exchange rates Increase (182,305;
Price indices Risk of variance of price indices coupons Reduction (631)
TR/TBF (Referential - Maintenance
Rate/Basic Fmancial Rate) Risk of vanance of TR and 1BF coupons
Others Risk of varance of other coupons Increase (26,408;
2011
Scenano 111
Rates
Risk factor Concept variance Result
Prefixed rate Risk of variance of the prefixed interest rates Increase (175,389)
Foreign currency coupons Risk of variance of foreign exchange coupons Increase (3,626}
Foreign exchange vanance Risk of vanance of the foreign exchange rates Increase (857.311)
Price indices Risk of vanance of price indices coupons Reduction (1,482)
TR/TBF (Referential Maintenance
Rate/Bastc Financial Rate) Risk of variance of TR and TBF coupons .
Others Risk of vanance of other coupons Reduction (94,304)
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2010
Scenario |
Rates
Risk factor Concept variance Result
Prefixed rate Risk of vanance of the prefixed interest rates Neutral -
Foreign currency coupons Rusk of vanmance of foreign exchange coupons Increase 84,994
Foreign exchange variance Risk of vanance of the foreign exchange rates Increase {1,380,765)
Price indices Rusk of vanance of price indices coupons Increase (4.807)
TR/TBF (Referential N
Rate/Basic Fnancial Rate) Risk of variance of TR and TBF coupons Increase (851
Others Rusk of variance of other coupons Increase (24,443)
2010
Scenario 11
Rates
Risk factor Concept variance Result
Prefixed rate Risk of vanance of the prefixed interest rates Reduction (1,211,761}
Foreign currency coupons Risk of vanance of foreign exchange coupons Reduction {223,796}
Foreign exchange varance Risk of vanance of the foreign exchange rates Increase (1,465,038)
Price indices Rusk of vanance of price indices coupons Increase (17,044)
TR/TBF (Referential Rate/Basic Riusk of vanance of TR and TBF coupons Increase (5,945)
Firancial Rate)
Others Risk of varnance of other coupons Reduction (42,403)
2010
Scenario I11
Rates
Risk factor Concept varance Result
Prefixed rate Risk of vanance of the prefixed interest rates Reduction (2,475,278)
Foreign currency coupons Risk of variance of foreign exchange coupons Reduction (334,147)
Foreign exchange vanance Risk of vanance of the foreign exchange rates Increase (2,051,286)
Price indices Rusk of vanance of price indices coupons Increase (28,997)
TR/1BF (Referential Rate/Baste Rusk of vanance of TR and TBF coupons Increase (10,483)
Financial Rate)
Others Risk of variance of other coupons Reduction (415,735)
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Basic interest rate hake

2011 2010 (a)

Risk factor Concept + 100 bps -100bps _ +100bps _ - 100 bps
Prefixed rate Rusk of variance of the prefixed nterest rates (44,468) 46,158 (1,749,443} 1,802,864
Sg[rl?grt:scurrency Rusk of variance of foreign exchange coupons (18,249) 21,422 (771,935) 825,779
Foreign exchange Riusk of varance of the foreign exchange rates - - - -
variance
Price indices Risk of variance of price indices coupons 726 (709) (465, 771) 497,988
TR/TBF

(Referential R i}

Rate/Basic Risk of vaniance of 1R and I'BF coupons (143,882) 155,367

Financial Rate)
Others Risk of vaniance of other coupons - - - -

(a) The Conglomerate separated the Trading and Banking portfolios as of May 31, 2011

For transactions classified in the Non-Trading Portfolio, appreciation or depreciation
resulting from changes of interest rates practiced in the market does not represent a
sigmficant financial and account impact on the result of the Bank This 1s because this
portfohio consists manly of credit transactions (direct consurner credit, agnibusiness, working
capital, etc), retaill funding (demand, term and savings deposits) and securities and bonds,
which are recorded mn accounting mamly at the rates covenanted upon contracting the
transactions In addition, one stresses the fact that these portfolios shows as a principal
characteristic the intention of mamntaiming the relevant positions up to maturity, thus not
incurring the effects of the fluctuations of interest rates, or due to the fact that these
transactions are naturally pegged to other instruments (natural hedge), thereby minimizing
the tmpacts 1n a stressful scenario

The tables below show a summary of the results for the Trading and Non-Trading (Banking)
Portfolio, presenting the amounts observed on each base date

2011
Scenaro 1
Rates

Risk factor Concept yvariance Result
Prefixed rate Riusk of variance of the prefixed interest rates Reduction 377,871
Foreign currency coupons Risk of vanance of foreign exchange coupons Increase (8,087)
Foreign exchange vanance {1) Risk of vaniance of the foreign exchange rates Increase 4,380
TILP Risk of vanance of TILP ceupons Maintenance -
TR/TBF {Referential Rate/Basic

Financtal Rate) Risk of variance of TR and TBF coupons Maintenance -
Price indices Risk of variance of price indices coupons Increase 2,509
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(1

2011
Scenario 11
Rates
Rusk factor Concept variance Result
Prefixed rate Risk of variance of the prefixed interest rates Increase (863,263)
Foreign currency coupons Risk of vanance of foreign exchange coupons Increase (33,678)
Foreiwgn exchange vanance
) Risk of varance of the foreign exchange rates Increase (192 363)
TILP Risk of vanance of TILP coupons Reduction (3,975)
TR/TBF (Referential
Rate/Basic Financial Rate) Risk of vanance of TR and TBF coupons Reduction (1,211
Price indices Risk of vanance of price indices coupons Reduction (5,298)
Amounts net of tax effects
2010
Scenarno I
Rates

Rusk factor Concept variance Result
Prefixed rate Risk of vanance of the prefixed interest rates Reduction -
Foreign currency coupons Risk of variance of foreign exchange coupons Increase -
Foreign exchange vanance (2)  Risk of vanance of the foreign exchange rates Reductton -
TILP Risk of variance of TILP coupons Reduction -
TR/TBF {Referential

Rate/Basic Financial Rate) Risk of vaniance of TR and TBF coupons Reduction )
Price indices Risk of vanance of price indices coupons Increase -

2010
Scenarwo 11
Rates

Risk factor Concept variance Result
Prefixed rate Risk of vanance of the prefixed interest rates Increase -
Foreign currency coupons Risk of vanance of foreign exchange eoupons Increase -
Foreign exchange vanance (2)  Risk of vanance of the foreign exchange rates Reduction -
TILP Risk of vanance of TJLP coupens Reduction -
TR/TBF (Referential

Rate/Basic Financial Rate) Risk of vanance of TR and TBF coupons Reduction .
Price indices Risk of vanance of price indices coupons Increase -
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(2) Amounts net of tax effects

Basi¢ interest rate ke

2011 2010 (a)
Risk factor Concept + 100 bps - 100 bps + 100 bps - 100 bps
Prefixed rate Risk of variance of the prefixed interest rates (432,265) 448240 (1,749,443) 1,802,864
Foreign currency Rusk of vanance of foreign exchange
coupons coupons {32,183) 38,067 {771,935) 825,779
Foreign exchange Risk of variance of the foreign exchange
variance rates - - - -
Price indices Rusk of vaniance of price indices coupons 6,085 (5478) (465,771) 497988

TR/TBF (Referential
Rate/Basic Financial

Rate) Risk of vanance of TR and TB¥ coupons
Others Risk of variance of other coupons

1425 (11,792)

(143,882) 155,367

(a) — The Conglomerate separated the Trading and Banking portfolios as of May 2011

The following tables show stress testing for conglomerate’s portfolio exposure to risk

Largest losses in retrospective stress testing

2011 2010
Rusk factor Exposure Stress Exposure Stress
Shares 38,060 (12,871) 166,304 (49,891}
Commodities 7421 (462) 7.293 (729)
Foreign currency 347,204 {171,242) 174,465 (26,170}
Interest rate 25,719 378 (87,199) 255,069,416 {5.318,348)
Total 26 112,063 (271.774) 255417.478 (5,395 138)
Largest gains in retrospective stress testing
2011 2010
Risk factor Exposure Stress Exposure Stress
Shares 38,060 - 166,304 31,598
Commodities 7,421 508 7,293 729
Foreign currency 347,204 - 174,465 43,616
Interest rate 25,719,378 88 666 255,069 416 5,638,198
Total 26,112 063 89 174 255417.478 5,714,141
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Largest losses in retrospective stress testing

2011 2010
Risk factor Exposure Stress Exposure Stress
Shares 38 060 (5,800) 166,304 {41,146}
Commedities 7,421 (462) 7,293 (729
Foregn currency 347,204 (78,240) 174,465 (15,513)
Interest rate 25719378 (719 250) 255,069,416 {4,424.090)
Total 26112 063 (163,752) 255417.478 (4,481 478)
Largest losses in retrospective stress testing
2011 2010
Risk factor Exposure Stress Exposure Stress
Shares 38,060 - 166,304 24,173
Commodities 7,421 508 7.293 729
Foreign currency 347204 - 174,465 31,981
Interest rate 25,719,378 66.917 255,069 416 3,767,784
Total 26,112,063 67.445 255,417,478 3,824,667

The accounting balances of the assets and liabilities are close to their corresponding fair
value, as these transactions are based on rates that are traded and practiced in the market The
fair values of the financial assets and liabihities, together with the Book values shown in the

balance sheet, are the following

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets with agreement for resale
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets available for sale
Derivative financial instruments
Loans and receivables

Total
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2011

2010

Book value

Fair value Book value

Fair value

5,594,904
9,618,225
10,011,804
16,045,469
1,676,944
86,148,678

5,594,904 1,499,981
9,618,225 12,256,373
10,011,804 13,111,360
16,045,469 8,796,258
1,676,944 1,789,425
86,148,678 78,795,878

1,499,981
12,256,373
13,111,360

8,796,258

1,789,425
78,795,878

129,096,024

129,096,024 116,249,275

116,249,275
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2011 2010

Book value Fair value Book value Fair value

Liabilities

Financial habihities at fair value through profit or loss 123,706 123,706 2,623,977 2623977
Financial habilities at amortized cost 35,366,768 35,366,768 33,998,441 33,998,441
Financial habilities associated w/ transferred assets 23,484,973 23,484,973 15,336,744 15,336,744
Financial mstitution deposits 2,856,203 2,856,203 726,266 726,266
Client deposits 22,768,436 22,768,436 22,871,690 22,871,690
Loans and onlendings 11,478,362 11,478,362 11,254,480 11,254,480
Securities 1ssued 17,739,264 17,739,264 11,252,882 11,252,882
Dervative financial instruments 1,482,004 1,482,004 1,894,621 1,894,621
Subordinated habilsties 7,397,310 7,397,310 6,904,262 6,904,262

Total 122.697.026 122,697,026 106,863,363 106,863,363

Methods and assumptions used to estimate fair value are defined below

Cash and cash equivalents and financial assets with resale agreements: Carrying
amounts for these instruments shown on the consolidated balance sheet are approximate to
their fair value

Financial assets at fair value in the result, financial assets available for sale and
dervatives: Under normal conditions, market prices quoted are the best indicators of fair
value for financial instruments However, not all instruments show hquidity or quotations,
and in these cases, estimates of present value and other pricing techniques have to be used

Fair value of government bonds 1s calculated based on nterest rates provided by third parties
n the market and validated by comparing with information provided by ANDIMA The fair
values of company's debt secunities are calculated estimating the values of applications and
discounting cash flows estimated by using market interest rates Fair values of shares are
calculated based on their quoted market prices Fair values of denvatives were determined as
follows
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1. Swaps: Their cash flows are discounted to present value based on yield curves that
reflect appropriate nsk factors These yield curves may be compiled mainly based on
prices of derivauves trading at BM & F, Brazihan government bonds on the secondary
market, or derivatives and securities traded abroad These yield curves may be used to
obtain fair value for currency swaps, mnterest rate swaps and swaps based on other nsk

factors (commodities, stock indices, etc )

n. Futures, Forwards and Non Deliverable Forwards: Quotations on stock exchanges or

using same critena as for swaps,

ili. Options: Fair values are determined based on mathematical models that are fed with data
for implied volatihity, yield curve and fair value of underlying asset Current market
prices of options are used to calculate implied volatilities All these data are obtained

from different external sources

Loans: Fair value 1s estmated by groups of loans with similar financial and nisk
characteristics, using valuation models Fair value of fixed rate loans was determined by

discounting estimated cash flows using interest rates near our current rates for simlar loans

For most vanable rate loans, the carrying amount was considered as approximate to 1its far
value Fair value of non-performing loans and leasing transactions was based on discounting
expected cash flows at a rate proportional to the nisk associated with the estimated cash flows
or value of underlying collateral Assumptions for cash flows and discount rates are

determined using available market information and specific borrower details

Financial liabilities at fair value in result, financial habilities at amortized cost, financial
liabilities associated with assigned assets, deposits from financial institutions, customer
deposits, loans and onlendings, securities 1ssued, derivatives and subordinated
liabilities: Fair value of customer deposits earning varable rates was considered approximate
to its carrying amount Financial habilities with floating rate and exchange-rate variation

have their risk exposure mitigated by denvatives

g. Fair value hierarchy

The table below shows financial instruments recorded at fair value on December 31, 2011,

ustng an evaluation method The different levels were defined as follows

e Level 1 Prices quoted (not adjusted) in active markets
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e Level 2 Inputs included in Level 1 that are observable for assets or habilities, directly
(pr:ces) or indirectly (deriving from prices, and
e Level 3 Assumptions that are based on market data that are observable (non-observable

inputs)
2011 2010

Level 1 Level2 Level3 Level 1 Level2  Level3
Assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 7207612 2249338 554 854 9,896,825 2,802,256 412,279
Financial assets available for sale 12,439,540 992,856 2,613,073 5,265,758 1,646,980 1,883,520
Denvatives 28,152 1,647,151 1,641 1,431,267 - 358,158
Loans and recewvables - 44 418 406 - - 40072,527 -
Total 19 675 304 49,307,751 3.169,568 16,593 850 44,521,763 2,653,957
Liabilities
Financial halities at fair value
through profit or loss 8,465 115,241 - - - -
Derivatives 7.386 1,442,054 32,564 1,590,540 - 304,081
Subordinated habilities - 2,199 747 - - 1,885 684 -
Total 15.851 3,757,042 32,564 1,590 540 1,885,684 304,081

The fair value of the financial instruments traded 1n active markets (such as instruments held
for trading and available for sale) 1s based on the market prices as quoted on the balance
sheet date A market 15 seen as being active 1f the prices quoted are promptly and regularly
available with a stock exchange, a dealer, a broker, a group of industries, pricing service or
regulating agency, and 1f such prices represent actual market transactions that occur regularly
on strictly commercial bases

The market price quoted used for the financial assets held by the Conglomerate 1s the current
competing price These instruments are included in Level 1.

The fair value of the financial instruments that are not traded 1n active markets (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) 15 deterrnined by using evaluation techniques These evaluation
techniques maximize the use of the data available in the market in which they are available,
and rely on specific estimates of the entity the least possible If all of the relevant information
required for the fair value of an instrument are available by the market, the instrument 1s
included 1n Level 2
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Farir value of financial instruments classified as level 3 are not based on data available in an
active market The Conglomerate uses criteria from mathematical models used 1n academic
circles and / or through specific governance with the participation of specialists and
structured 1nternal processes

The aim 1s to obtaining the most appropriate value for presenting these transactions, and the
conglomerate believes that methodelogies adopted are appropriate and consistent with market
practices The following are classified as Level 3 debentures, shares of non-public
companies, and credit denvatives

Changes in level 3
Assets
Financial assets at fair value Financial assets available Dermvative financial
through profit/loss for sale nstruments

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Beginming balance 412,279 - 1,883,520 253 698 358,158 416,347
Acquisitions 467,092 412,279 - 1,665,941 - -
Charge-offs (330,395} - - - - -
Transfers - - - - {350,733 -
Restatements 5,878 - 729,553 (36.419) (5,784) (58,189}
Ending balance 554,854 412,279 2,613,073 1,883,520 1,641 358,158
Liabilities

Denvative financial instruments
2011 2010

Beginming balance 304,081 463415
Acquisittons - -
Charge-offs - -
Transfers {272421) -
Restatements 904 {159.334)
Ending balance 32 564 304,081

107




46

Banco Votorantim S.A.

Explanatory notes to the consolidated financial statements

(in thousands of Brazilian Reais)

Other information

a. Post-employment benefits for employees

There are no post-employment benefits, such as pensions, other retirement benefits, hife
insurance and post-employment medical care, other long-term benefits for employees and
admimistrative officers, including remunerated leave of absence for years of service or other
leaves, jubilee or other benefits for years of service, remuneration based on shares and
benefits upon termination of employment contract, except for those provided in the collective

bargaining agreement of the professional category

b. Insurance coverage

The Conglomerate adopts a policy of contracting insurance coverage for the assets subject to
nisks, for amounts considered to be sufficient to cover any insurance losses, considening the
nature of 1ts activities The risk assumptions adopted, given their nature, are not part of the
scope of an audnt of the financial statements and consequently were not anaiyzed by our

mdependent auditors
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In accordance with
Regulation 32 of the
Overseas Companies
Regulaticns 2009

OS AAOT

Statement of details of parent law and other
information for an overseas company

1

< What this form 1s for
You may use this form to
accompany your accounts
disclosed under parent law

X What this form 1s NOT for
You cannot use this form to
an alteration of manner of ¢
with accounting requiremen

ADB

o

Companies House

"AQUILULDT
270712015 #12
COMPANIES HOUSE

COMPANIES HOUSE )

Part 1 Corporate company name
Corporate name of | BANCO VOTORANTIM SA
overseas company O

UK establhishment
number

el fofsislafsfe]

3 Filling in this form
Please complete In typescrtpt or m
bold black caprtals

All fields are mandatory unless
speafied or indicated by *

@ This 1s the name of the company in
its home state

Part 2

Statement of details of parent law and other
information for an overseas company

B

Legislation

Please give the legislation under which the accounts have been prepared and,
if applicable, the legisiation under which the accounts have been audited

@ This means the relevant rules or
legislation which regulates the
preparation and, If apphcable, the
audit of accounts

Legislation ® l Brazihian law
Accounting principles
Accounts Have the accounts been prepared 1n accordance with a set of generally accepted | @ Please insert the name of the

accounting pninciples?
Please tick the appropriate box
[ No GotoSection A3

Yes Please enter the name of the orgamisation or other
body which 1ssued those principles below, and then go to Section A3

Name of organisation |

appropnate accounting organisation
or body

or body © BRGARP ANBIFRS
Accounts
Accounts Have the accounts been audited? Please tick the appropnate box

[] No Goto Section AS
Yes Go to Section A4
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Statement of details of parent law and other information for an overseas company

Audited accounts

Audited accounts

Have the accounts been audited in accordance with a set of generally accepted
auditing standards?

Please tick the appropnate box
[] No Goto Part 3 ‘Signature’

Yes Please enter the name of the organisation or other body which i1ssued
those standards below, and then go to Part 3 *Signature’

Name of organisation I KPMG

O Please insert the name of the
appropnate accounting
organisation or body

or body @
w Unaudited accounts
Unaudited accounts | Is the company required to have its accounts audited?
Please tick the appropnate box
J No
Yes
Part 3 Signature
| { am signing this form on behalf of the overseas company
Signature Signature M
This form may be sigried by N
Director, Secretary, Permanent representative
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Statement of details of parent law and other information for an overseas company

B Presenter information

mmportant information

You do not have to give any contact information, but if
you do 1t will help Companies House if there 15 a query
on the form The contact information you give will be
visible to searchers of the public record

| Contact n2me JEE HYON BYUN
fomemeant JOTORANTIM SECURITIES UK LTy

l Address.

| ™" LONDON
| ™S | ONDON

== _Jefelsv[ Jsfofu

20 BIRCHIN LANE

[Counm,- UK

|Dx

0203 178 6588

Checklist

’ Telephane

We may return forms completed incorrectly or
with information missing

Please make sure you have remembered the

following

0 The company name and, f appropriate, the
registered number, match the information held on
the public Register

O You have completed all sections of the form,
if appropnate

(0 You have signed the form

Please note that all this information will appear
on the pubhc record

E Where to send

You may return this form to any Companies
House address

England and Wales

The Registrar of Cempanies, Companies House,
Crown Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF14 3UZ

DX 33050 Cardiff

Scotland

The Registrar of Compamies, Companies House,
Fourth floor, Edinburgh Quay 2,

139 Fountainbndge, Edinburgh, Scetland, EH3 9FF
DX ED235 Edinburgh 1

or LP - 4 Edinburgh 2 (Legal Post)

Northern Ireland

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Second Floor, The Linenhall, 32-38 Linenhall Street,
Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT2 8BG

DX 481 NR Belfast 1

ﬂ Further information

For further information, please see the guidance notes
on the website at www companieshouse gov uk
or emall enquines@companieshouse gov uk

This form is available in an
alternative format. Please visit the
forms page on the website at
www.companieshouse.gov.uk

This has been provided free of charge by Companies House
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